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UNITED STATES
SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION
Washington, D.C. 20549

FORM 10-D/A

ASSET-BACKED ISSUER
DISTRIBUTION REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF
THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934

For the monthly distribution period from
September 1, 2007 to September 30, 2007

Commission File Number of issuing entity: 333-134691-08

IndyMac Home Equity Mortgage Loan Asset-Backed Trust, Series 2007-H1
(Exact name of issuing entity as specified in its Charter)

Commission File Number of depositor: 333-134691

IndyMac ABS, Inc.
(Exact name of depositor as specified in its Charter)

IndyMac Bank, F.S.B
(Exact name of sponsor as specified in its Charter)

Delaware
(State or other jurisdiction of incorporation or organization
of the issuing entity)

Lower Tier Remic 20-8876378
Upper Tier Remic 20-8876403
(I.R.S. Employer Identification No.)

Care of Deutsche Bank National Trust Company as Trustee
1761 East St. Andrew Place, Santa Ana CA
(Address of principal executive offices of the issuing entity)
92705
(Zip Code)

Registrant's Telephone Number, Including Area Code: (626) 535-5555

NONE
(Former name or former address, if changed since last report)

Registered / reporting pursuant to (check one)

Section 12 (b) Section 12(g) Section 15(d) Name of Exchange
Title of Class (if Section 12 (b))
Note Class [ ] [ ] [X] Not Applicable
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Indicate by check mark whether the registrant (1) has filed all reports
required to be filed by Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act
of 1934 during the preceding 12 months (or for such shorter period that the
registrant was required to file such reports), and (2) has been subject to
such filing requirements for the past 90 days. Yes [X] No [ ]

PART T DISTRIBUTION INFORMATION

Item 1. Distribution and Pool Performance Information.
On October 25, 2007 a distribution was made to holders of IndyMac
ABS, Inc., IndyMac Home Equity Mortgage Loan Asset-Backed Trust,
Series 2007-H1

This amendment on Form 10-D/A amends and supersedes in its entirety
The Form 10-D of IndyMac ABS, Inc., IndyMac Home Equity Mortgage Loan
Asset-Backed Trust, Series 2007-H1 previously filed on November 1,
2007.

PART II OTHER INFORMATION

Item 2. Legal Proceedings.
None.
Item 3. Sales of Securities and Use of Proceeds.
None.
Item 4. Defaults Upon Senior Securities.
None.
Item 5. Submission of Matters to a Vote of Security Holders.
None.

Item 6. Significant Obligors of Pool Assets.
None.

Item 7. Significant Enhancement Provider Information.
FSA as the credit enhancement provider.

Item 8. Other Information.
None.

Item 9. Exhibits.
(a) The following is a list of documents filed as part of this Report
on Form 10-D:

Amended Statement to Certificateholders on October 25, 2007 is
filed as Exhibit 99.1 hereto.

FSA Financial Data as described in the attached
as Exhibit 99.2 hereto.
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(b) The exhibits required to be filed by Registrant pursuant to Item
601 of Regulation S-K are listed above in the Exhibit Index that
immediately follows the signature page hereof.

SIGNATURES
Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the

registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the
undersigned thereunto duly authorized.

IndyMac ABS, Inc.
(Depositor)

/s/ Beverlin Hammett
Name: Beverlin Hammett

Title: First Vice President

Date: December 4, 2007

Exhibit Number Description
99.1 Amended Monthly report distributed to holders of the
IndyMac ABS, Inc., IndyMac Home Equity Mortgage Loan
Asset-Backed Trust, Series 2007-H1

99.2 FSA Financial Data
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IndyMac Home Equity Loan Trust 2007-H1

Mortgage Pass-Through Certificates
October 25, 2007 Distribution

External Parties Table of Contents
Seller Page
IndyMac Bank 1. Certificate Payment Report 2
2. Collection Account Report 4
Certificate Insurer(s) 3. Credit Enhancement Report 6
) ) ) 4. Collateral Report 7
Financial Security Assurance .
5. Delinquency Report 10
Servicer(s) 6. REO Report 11
7. Foreclosure Report 12
IndyMac Bank
8. Prepayment Report 13
9. Prepayment Detail Report 18
Underwriter(s) .
10. Realized Loss Report 19
Lehman Brothers 11. Realized Loss Detail Report 20
Bond Class Insurer 12. Triggers and Adj. Cert. Report 21
Financial Security Assurance 13. Other Related Information 22
Total Number of Pages 22
Dates Contacts
Cut-Off Date: March 14, 2007 Amy Stoddard
Close Date: March 23, 2007 Administrator
First Distribution Date: April 25, 2007 (714) 247-6255
Amy.Stoddard@db.com

Distribution Date: October 25,2007  Address:
1761 East St. Andrew Place, Santa Ana, CA 92705

Record Date: September 28, 2007 Factor Information: (800) 735-7777
October 24,2007  Main Phone Number: (714) 247-6000

Determination Date:  October 19, 2007
https://tss.sfs.db.com/investpublic

Page 1 of 22
|-- B Trust & Securities Services |

IndyMac Home Equity Loan Trust 2007-H1

Mortgage Pass-Through Certificates

October 25, 2007 Distribution

Certificate Payment Report

Current Period Distribution - Upper-Tier REMIC

Prior Current
Class Original Principal Total Realized Deferred  Principal
Class Type Face Value Balance Interest Principal Distribution Loss Interest Balance
(N=D-3)-

() @ 3 @=2)+(3) 5 (6)
(5)+(6)
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NOTES SR 650,071,000.00595,231,425.312,624,598.574,299,441.57  6,924,040.14 0.00 0.00 590,931,983.74

NOF/
B SUB 680.31 6,824,708.25 0.00 0.00 0.00 243,464.130.00 6,581,244.12
L RES 0.00 0.00 25,500.00  0.00 25,500.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
R RES 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Total 650,071,680.31602,056,133.562,650,098.574,299,441.57  6,949,540.14 243,464.130.00 597,513,227.86

Interest Accrual Detail Current Period Factor Information per $1,000 of Original Face Value

Orig. Principal Prior Current
Period Period (with Notional) Principal Total Principal
Class Starting Ending Method Cusip Balance Balance Interest Principal Distribution Balance
(O] @ (@) 3) @=2)+3) ()
09/25/
NOTES 07 10/24/07 A-Act/360 45669DAA6650,071,000.00915.640638 4.037403 6.61380310.651206 909.026835
09/25/
B 07 10/24/07 A-Act/360 680.31 10,031,762.3583370.000000 0.000000 0.000000 9,673,890.020726
09/25/
L o7 10/24/07 F-Act/360 0.00 0.000000 0.000000 0.0000000.000000 0.000000
09/25/
R 07 10/24/07 F-Act/360 0.00 0.000000 0.000000 0.0000000.000000 0.000000
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IndyMac Home Equity Loan Trust 2007-H1

Mortgage Pass-Through Certificates
October 25, 2007 Distribution

Distribution to Date - Upper-Tier REMIC

Current
Original Unscheduled Scheduled Total Total Realized Deferred Principal
Class  Face Value Interest Principal ~ Principal  Principal  Distribution Loss Interest Balance
@ @ 3 “ 5=t ©=2)+5) (O] ® O=D)-(5)-(NH®)
NOTES 650,071,000.0020,391,628.36 59,139,016.26 0.00 59,139,016.26 79,530,644.62 0.00 0.00 590,931,983.74
B 680.31 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 243,464.13 6,824,027.94  6,581,244.12
L 0.00 264,150.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 264,150.00  0.00 0.00 0.00
R 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Total 650,071,680.3120,655,778.36 59,139,016.260.00 59,139,016.26 79,794,794.62243,464.13 6,824,027.94  597,513,227.86
Interest Detail - Upper-Tier REMIC
Pass Prior Principal Non- Prior Unscheduled Paid or Current
Through  (with Notional) Accrued  Supported  Unpaid Interest Optimal Deferred Unpaid
Class Rate Balance Interest  Interest SF Interest Adjustment Interest Interest Interest
(O] @ (3) “ (5)=(D-+G)+# Q) (N=(5-(6)
NOTES 5.29125% 595,231,425.312,624,598.57 0.00 0.00 0.00 2,624,598.57  2,624,598.57  0.00
B 0.00000% 6,824,708.25  0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
L  0.00000% 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 25,500.00 0.00
R 0.00000% 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Total 602,056,133.562,624,598.57 0.00 0.00 0.00 2,624,598.57  2,650,098.57  0.00
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IndyMac Home Equity Loan Trust 2007-H1

Mortgage Pass-Through Certificates
October 25, 2007 Distribution

Collection Account Report

SUMMARY

Total
Principal Collections 3,095,920.02
TOTAL NET PRINCIPAL 3,095,920.02
Interest Collections 4,141,592.73
Interest Other Accounts 25,500.00
Interest Fees -313,472.61
TOTAL NET INTEREST 3,853,620.12
TOTAL AVAILABLE FUNDS FOR DISTRIBUTION 6,949,540.14
PRINCIPAL - COLLECTIONS

Total
Scheduled Principal Received 0.00
Prepayments In Full 0.00
Curtailments 4,542,905.70
Liquidations 0.00
Other Principal 0.00
Total Realized Loss Of Principal -1,446,985.68
TOTAL PRINCIPAL COLLECTED 3,095,920.02
PRINCIPAL - WITHDRAWALS

SPACE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK
PRINCIPAL - OTHER ACCOUNTS
SPACE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK

INTEREST - COLLECTIONS

Total
Scheduled Interest 4,141,592.73
Other Interest 0.00
Prepayment Interest Shortfalls -0.00
TOTAL INTEREST COLLECTED 4,141,592.73
Page 4 of 22
| —— m Trust & Securities Services |

IndyMac Home Equity Loan Trust 2007-H1

Mortgage Pass-Through Certificates
October 25, 2007 Distribution

INTEREST - WITHDRAWALS
Total
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Class L % of Interest Collections 0.00

INTEREST - OTHER ACCOUNTS

Total
Prepayment Charges 25,500.00
TOTAL INTEREST OTHER ACCOUNTS 25,500.00
INTEREST FEES

Total
Current Servicing Fees 250,856.72
Indenture Trustee Fees 2,759.42
Owner Trustee Fees 333.33
Certificate Insurance Fees 59,523.14
TOTAL INTEREST FEES 313,472.61
Page 5 of 22
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IndyMac Home Equity Loan Trust 2007-H1

Mortgage Pass-Through Certificates
October 25, 2007 Distribution

Credit Enhancement Report
ACCOUNTS

Reserve Account

Beginning Balance 0.00
Amount Deposited 0.00
Interest Earnings 0.00
Amount Withdrawn 0.00
Releases 0.00
Ending Balance 0.00
INSURANCE

SPACE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK

STRUCTURAL FEATURES

Total
Overcollateralized Amount 6,581,244.12
Overcollateralization Target Amount 14,626,612.81
Overcollateralization Increase Amount 1,203,521.55
Overcollateralization Release Amount 0.00
Overcollateralization Deficiency Amount 8,045,368.69
Total Monthly Excess Spread 1,203,521.55
Invested Amount 597,513,227.86
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IndyMac Home Equity Loan Trust 2007-H1

Mortgage Pass-Through Certificates
October 25, 2007 Distribution

Copyright © 2012 www.secdatabase.com. All Rights Reserved.
Please Consider the Environment Before Printing This Document


http://www.secdatabase.com

Collateral Report
COLLATERAL

Loan Count:

Original

Prior

Prefunding

Scheduled Paid Offs

Full Voluntary Prepayments
Repurchases

Liquidations

Current

Principal Balance:

Original

Prior

Prefunding

Scheduled Principal

Partial Prepayments

Full Voluntary Prepayments
Repurchases

Liquidations

Current

PREFUNDING

8,989
8,360

650,071,680.31
602,056,133.56
0.00

-0.00
-4,542,905.70
-0.00

-0.00

-0.00
597,513,227.86

SPACE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK

Total

Current Principal Balance by Groups

T00LL

+00LL

00T

00LL

100L

Total Current Principal Balance

TO0LL

+00LL

S00LL

00T

10011

T A R PY S PRPY i (374
- Crogp 1
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IndyMac Home Equity Loan Trust 2007-H1

Mortgage Pass-Through Certificates
October 25, 2007 Distribution

CHARACTERISTICS

Weighted Average Coupon Original

Total
6.42595%
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Weighted Average Coupon Prior

Weighted Average Coupon Current

Weighted Average Months to Maturity Original
Weighted Average Months to Maturity Prior
Weighted Average Months to Maturity Current
Weighted Avg Remaining Amortization Term Original
Weighted Avg Remaining Amortization Term Prior
Weighted Avg Remaining Amortization Term Current
Weighted Average Seasoning Original

Weighted Average Seasoning Prior

Weighted Average Seasoning Current

9.30910%
8.25490%

360
355
354
360
355
354
0.00
5.00
6.00

Weighted Average Coupon by Groups
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IndyMac Home Equity Loan Trust 2007-H1

Mortgage Pass-Through Certificates
October 25, 2007 Distribution

ARM CHARACTERISTICS

Weighted Average Margin Original
Weighted Average Margin Prior
Weighted Average Margin Current

Total

0.00000%
1.41000%
1.41000%
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Weighted Average Max Rate Original
Weighted Average Max Rate Prior
Weighted Average Max Rate Current

0.00000%
17.99000%
17.98000%

Weighted Average Min Rate Original 0.00000%
Weighted Average Min Rate Prior 0.00000%
Weighted Average Min Rate Current 0.00000%
Weighted Average Cap Up Original 0.00000%
Weighted Average Cap Up Prior 0.00000%
Weighted Average Cap Up Current 0.00000%
Weighted Average Cap Down Original 0.00000%
Weighted Average Cap Down Prior 0.00000%
Weighted Average Cap Down Current 0.00000%
SERVICING FEES & ADVANCES

Total
Current Servicing Fees 250,856.72
Delinquent Servicing Fees 0.00
TOTAL SERVICING FEES 250,856.72
ADDITIONAL COLLATERAL INFORMATION

Total
Excess Prepayment Interest Shortfall 0.00
Maximum Rate 7.6301%
Page 9 of 22
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IndyMac Home Equity Loan Trust 2007-H1

Mortgage Pass-Through Certificates
October 25, 2007 Distribution
Delinquency Report

TOTAL

<1PAYMENT 1 PAYMENT 2 PAYMENTS 3+ PAYMENTS TOTAL

Balance
DELINQUENT % Balance

# Loans

Balance 0.00
FORECLOSURE % Balance 0.00%

#Loans O
21,531.22
BANKRUPTCY % Balance 0.00%
#Loans 1
Balance 0.00
% Balance 0.00%
#Loans O
Balance 21,531.22
% Balance 0.00%
#Loans 1

Balance

REO

TOTAL

Page 10 of 22

11,973,794.348,834,319.15  14,849,724.59

2.00% 1.48% 2.49%
143 89 153

0.00 0.00 0.00
0.00% 0.00% 0.00%

0 0 0
52,142.28 0.00 84,220.57
0.01% 0.00% 0.00%

1 0 1

0.00 0.00 0.00
0.00% 0.00% 0.00%

0 0 0
12,025,936.62 8,834,319.15  14,933,945.16
2.01% 1.48% 2.49%
144 89 154

35,657,838.08
5.97%

385

0.00

0.00%

0

157,894.07
0.01%

3

0.00

0.00%

0
35,815,732.15
5.98%

388
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IndyMac Home Equity Loan Trust 2007-H1

Mortgage Pass-Through Certificates

October 25, 2007 Distribution

REO Report

Loan Number Original Stated Current State & First
& Principal Principal Paid to Note LTV at Original Payment

Loan Group Balance Balance Date Rate Origination Term  Date

Page 11 of 22
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IndyMac Home Equity Loan Trust 2007-H1

Mortgage Pass-Through Certificates

October 25, 2007 Distribution

Foreclosure Report

Loan Number Original Stated Current State & First
& Principal Principal Paid to Note LTV at Original Payment

Loan Group Balance Balance Date Rate Origination Term  Date
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IndyMac Home Equity Loan Trust 2007-H1

Mortgage Pass-Through Certificates
October 25, 2007 Distribution

Prepayment Report
VOLUNTARY PREPAYMENTS

Total
Current
Number of Paid in Full Loans 0
Number of Repurchased Loans 0
Total Number of Loans Prepaid in Full 0
Curtailments Amount 4,542,905.70
Paid in Full Balance 0.00
Repurchased Loans Balance 0.00
Total Prepayment Amount 4,542,905.70
Cumulative
Number of Paid in Full Loans 0
Number of Repurchased Loans 0
Total Number of Loans Prepaid in Full 0
Paid in Full Balance 0.00
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Repurchased Loans Balance 0.00
Curtailments Amount 52,558,452.45
Total Prepayment Amount 52,558,452.45
Total Prepayments by Groups Total Prepaymenis
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IndyMac Home Equity Loan Trust 2007-H1

m Trust & Securities Services |

Mortgage Pass-Through Certificates
October 25, 2007 Distribution

VOLUNTARY PREPAYMENTS RATES - Including Liquidated Balances

Total

SMM 0.75%

3 Months Avg SMM 1.04%

12 Months Avg SMM 1.20%

Avg SMM Since Cut-off 1.20%

CPR 8.69%

3 Months Avg CPR 11.76%

12 Months Avg CPR 13.46%

Avg CPR Since Cut-off 13.46%

PSA 724.02%

3 Months Avg PSA Approximation
12 Months Avg PSA Approximation

1,175.61%
2,242.78%

Avg PSA Since Cut-off Approximation 2,242.79%

(*) SMM, CPR, PSA Figures Include Liquidated Balances
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CPR by Groups Total CPE
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IndyMac Home Equity Loan Trust 2007-H1
Mortgage Pass-Through Certificates
October 25, 2007 Distribution
CPR Avg since Cut-Offhy Groups Total CPR Avgsince Cut-Off
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PSA Avg since Cut-Offby Groups Total PSA Avg since Cut-Off
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PREPAYMENT CALCULATION METHODOLOGY - Including Liquidated Balances

Single Monthly Mortality (SMM): (Voluntary partial and full prepayments + Repurchases + Liquidated Balances)/(Beg Principal Balance - Sched
Principal)

Conditional Prepayment Rate (CPR): 1-((1-SMM)"12)

PSA Standard Prepayment Model: CPR/(0.20%*min(30,WAS))

Average SMM over period between nth month and mth month (AvgSMMn,m): 1 - [(1-SMMn)*(1-SMMn+1)*...*(1-SMMm)]*(1/months in period
n,m)

Average CPR over period between the nth month and mth month (AvgCPRn,m): 1-((1-AvgSMMn,m)"12)

Average PSA Approximation over period between the nth month and mth month: AvgCPRn,m/(0.20%*Avg WASn,m))

Average WASn,m: (min(30,WASn)+min(30,WASn+1)+...+min(30,WASm)/(number of months in the period n,m)

Weighted Average Seasoning (WAS)

Note: Prepayment rates are calculated since deal issue date and include partial and full voluntary prepayments and repurchases.

Dates correspond to distribution dates.

Page 15 of 22
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IndyMac Home Equity Loan Trust 2007-H1

Mortgage Pass-Through Certificates
October 25, 2007 Distribution

VOLUNTARY PREPAYMENTS RATES - Excluding Liquidated Balances

Total
SMM 0.75%
3 Months Avg SMM 1.04%
12 Months Avg SMM 1.20%
Avg SMM Since Cut-off 1.20%
CPR 8.69%
3 Months Avg CPR 11.76%
12 Months Avg CPR 13.46%
Avg CPR Since Cut-off 13.46%
PSA 724.02%
3 Months Avg PSA Approximation 1,175.61%
12 Months Avg PSA Approximation 2,242.78%
Avg PSA Since Cut-off Approximation 2,242.79%
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(*) SMM, CPR, PSA Figures Exclude Liquidated Balances

CPR by Groups Total CPR
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IndyMac Home Equity Loan Trust 2007-H1
Mortgage Pass-Through Certificates
October 25, 2007 Distribution
CPR Avg since Cut-Offhy Groups Total CPR Avg since Cut-Off
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PREPAYMENT CALCULATION METHODOLOGY - Excluding Liquidated Balances

Single Monthly Mortality (SMM): (Voluntary partial and full prepayments + Repurchases)/(Beg Principal Balance - Sched Principal)
Conditional Prepayment Rate (CPR): 1-((1-SMM)"12)

PSA Standard Prepayment Model: CPR/(0.20%*min(30,WAS))

Average SMM over period between nth month and mth month (AvgSMMn,m): 1 - [(1-SMMn)*(1-SMMn-+1)*...*(1-SMMm)]*(1/months in period
n,m)

Average CPR over period between the nth month and mth month (AvgCPRn,m): 1-((1-AvgSMMn,m)"12)

Average PSA Approximation over period between the nth month and mth month: AvgCPRn,m/(0.20%*Avg WASn,m))

Average WASn,m: (min(30,WASn)+min(30, WASn+1)+...+min(30,WASm)/(number of months in the period n,m)

Weighted Average Seasoning (WAS)

Note: Prepayment rates are calculated since deal issue date and include partial and full voluntary prepayments and repurchases.

Dates correspond to distribution dates.

Page 17 of 22
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IndyMac Home Equity Loan Trust 2007-H1

Mortgage Pass-Through Certificates
October 25, 2007 Distribution

Prepayment Detail Report
Prepayment Detail Report - Mortgage Loans Prepaid in Full During Current Distribution

Loan Number Original Current State & Type Prepayment First
& Loan Principal Prepayment Prepayment Note LTV at & Payment
Loan Group Status Balance Amount Date Rate Origination Original Term  Date

SPACE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK
TOTAL
Page 18 of 22
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IndyMac Home Equity Loan Trust 2007-H1

Mortgage Pass-Through Certificates
October 25, 2007 Distribution
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Realized Loss Report
COLLATERAL REALIZED LOSSES

Total
Current
Number of Loans Liquidated 0
Collateral Principal Realized Loss/(Gain) Amount 1,446,985.68
Collateral Interest Realized Loss/(Gain) Amount 0.00
Net Liquidation Proceeds (1,446,985.68)
Cumulative
Number of Loans Liquidated 0
Collateral Realized Loss/(Gain) Amount 1,998,999.87
Net Liquidation Proceeds (1,998,999.87)

Page 19 of 22
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IndyMac Home Equity Loan Trust 2007-H1

Mortgage Pass-Through Certificates
October 25, 2007 Distribution

Realized Loss Detail Report

Loan Number Current State & Prior Realized Cumulative
& Loan Note LTV at Original Principal Loss/(Gain) Realized Realized

Loan Group Status Rate Origination Term Balance Revision Loss/(Gain)Loss/(Gain)
TOTAL

Page 20 of 22
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IndyMac Home Equity Loan Trust 2007-H1

Mortgage Pass-Through Certificates
October 25, 2007 Distribution

Triggers and Adj. Cert. Report

TRIGGER EVENTS
Total
Has a Rapid Amortization Event occurred? No
Has a Stepdown Date Occurred? No
Step-Down Test Satisfied? No

Six Month Rolling Avg of > 2 period Delinquent Loans 1.970000%

ADJUSTABLE RATE CERTIFICATE INFORMATION
SPACE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK

ADDITIONAL INFORMATION

Total
Libor For Current Period 5.131250%
Libor For Next Period 4.872500%
Next Libor Rate Determination Date 10/23/2007
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Libor Rate Determination Date 09/21/2007
Page 21 of 22
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IndyMac Home Equity Loan Trust 2007-H1

Mortgage Pass-Through Certificates
October 25, 2007 Distribution

Other Related Information

ADDITIONAL INFORMATION

Total
Additional Pool Reporting
(a) Cutoff Date Pool Balance 650,071,680.31
(b) Cummulative Charge-off Amounts 1,998,999.87
(c) Current Period Charge-off Amounts 1,446,985.68
(d) Pool Balance at begining of Due Period 602,056,133.56
(e) Aggregate Principal Received 9,775,180.73
(f) Draws 6,679,260.71
(g) Net Principal Received (e - f) 3,095,920.02
(h) Subsequent Mortgage Loan Balances 0.00
(1) Additional Mortgages and Draws ( f+h) 6,679,260.71
(j) Pool Balance at End of Due Period 597,513,227.86
(k) Net Recoveries 0.00
(1) No. of Loans at the Begining of Due Period 8,360
(m) Closed Accounts 135
(n) Mortgage Loans Added 0
(o) No. of Loans at the End of Due Period (k -1+ m) 8,225
Weighted Averages
(a) Weighted Average of Loan Rates 9.6600%
(b) Weighted Average of Loan Rate Cap 17.9800%
(c) Weighted Average of Loan Margins 1.4100%
Insurance Policy Draws
(a) Guaranteed Interest Amount 0.00
(b) Guaranteed Principal Distribution Amount 0.00
(c) Insurance Policy Draw Amount (a+b) 0.00
Modified Loans
A.Aggregate Principal Balance of Mortgage Loans modified 0.00
after giving effect to modifications
B.Aggregate Credit Limit of Mortgage Loans modified 0.00

on a cumulative basis after giving effect to modifications
C.Weighted average of Credit Limits of Mortgage Loans at 0.0000%

end of Collection Period after giving effect to modification

Substitute Loans

A.Purchase Prices 0.00
B.Substitution Adjustment 0.00
Page 22 of 22
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SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION

Washington, D.C. 20549

FORM 10-Q

(Mark One)

QUARTERLY REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE
SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934

For the quarterly period ended June 30, 2007
OR

O TRANSITION REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE
SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934

For the transition period from to

Commission File Number: 1-12644

Financial Security Assurance Holdings Ltd.

(Exact name of registrant as specified in its charter)

New York 13-3261323
(State or other jurisdiction of (LR.S. Employer Identification No.)

incorporation or organization)

31 West 52" Street
New York, New York 10019
(Address of principal executive offices)

(212) 826-0100
(Registrant’ s telephone number, including area code)

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant (1) has filed all reports required to be filed by Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934 during the preceding 12 months (or for such shorter period that the registrant was required to file such reports), and
(2) has been subject to such filing requirements for the past 90 days. Yes No O

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a large accelerated filer, an accelerated filer, or a non-accelerated filer. See definition of
“accelerated filer and large accelerated filer” in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act. (Check one):

Large accelerated filer 0  Accelerated filer 0  Non-accelerated filer

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a shell company (as defined in Rule 12b-2 of the Act). Yes O No

At August 13, 2007, there were 33,276,017 outstanding shares of Common Stock of the registrant (excludes 241,978 shares of treasury
stock).
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PART I-FINANCIAL INFORMATION
Item 1. Financial Statements.
FINANCIAL SECURITY ASSURANCE HOLDINGS LTD. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS (unaudited)

(in thousands, except share data)

June 30, December 31,
2007 2006
ASSETS
General investment portfolio:
Bonds at fair value (amortized cost of $4,579,549 and $4,546,147) $ 4,662,708 $ 4,721,512
Equity securities at fair value (cost of $39,316 and $54,291) 39,380 54,325
Short-term investments (cost of $126,913 and $96,055) 128,253 96,578
Financial products segment investment portfolio:
Bonds at fair value (amortized cost of $18,013,847 and $16,692,183) 17,980,660 16,757,979
Short-term investments 850,585 659,704
Trading portfolio at fair value 342,149 119,424
Assets acquired in refinancing transactions:
Bonds at fair value (amortized cost of $26,483 and $40,133) 28,012 41,051
Securitized loans 201,577 241,785
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Other

50,346 55,036
Total investment portfolio 24,283,670 22,747,394
Cash 48,995 32,471
Deferred acquisition costs 346,618 340,673
Prepaid reinsurance premiums 1,027,984 1,004,987
Reinsurance recoverable on unpaid losses 39,834 37,342
Other assets 1,243,591 1,610,759
TOTAL ASSETS $26,990,692  $25,773,626
LIABILITIES, MINORITY INTEREST AND SHAREHOLDERS’
EQUITY
Deferred premium revenue $ 2,683,201 $ 2,653,321
Loss and loss adjustment expense reserve 238,975 228,122
Financial products segment debt 19,384,688 18,349,665
Deferred federal income taxes 225,832 298,542
Notes payable 730,000 730,000
Other liabilities and minority interest 1,041,969 791,664
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND MINORITY INTEREST 24,304,665 23,051,314
COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES
Common stock (200,000,000 shares authorized; 33,517,995 issued; par value of
$.01 per share) 335 335
Additional paid-in capital-common 906,687 906,687
Accumulated other comprehensive income (net of deferred income taxes of
$19,723 and $86,119) 36,732 160,038
Accumulated earnings 1,742,273 1,655,252
Deferred equity compensation 19,225 19,225
Less treasury stock at cost (241,978 shares held) (19,225) (19,225)
TOTAL SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY 2,686,027 2,722,312

TOTAL LIABILITIES, MINORITY INTEREST AND SHAREHOLDERS’

EQUITY $26,990,692  $25,773,626

The accompanying Notes are an integral part of the Consolidated Financial Statements (unaudited).

FINANCIAL SECURITY ASSURANCE HOLDINGS LTD. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS AND COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (unaudited)

(in thousands)

Three Months Ended Six Months Ended
June 30, June 30,

2007 2006 2007 2006

REVENUES

Net premiums written $111,715 $150,996 $ 211,915 $ 239,728

$106,021 § 98,461 § 205,033 § 192,957

Net premiums earned

Net investment income 58,117 53,254 115,826 106,300
Net realized gains (losses) (1,903) (3,636) (2,058) (4,554)
Net interest income from financial products segment 270,241 207,522 517,919 383,811
Net realized gains (losses) from financial products segment 1,208 = 1,742 77
Net realized and unrealized gains (losses) on derivative instruments (44,534) 74,759 (26,163) 132,584
Income from assets acquired in refinancing transactions 5,464 6,126 11,316 13,107
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Net realized gains (losses) from assets acquired in refinancing

transactions 44 (171) 313 541

Other income 15,631 1,028 21,190 8,376
TOTAL REVENUES 410,289 437,343 845,118 833,199
EXPENSES

Losses and loss adjustment expenses 4,678 7,899 9,068 11,184

Interest expense 11,584 6,748 23,168 13,496

Amortization of deferred policy acquisition costs 18,055 14,421 34,006 30,631

Foreign exchange (gains) losses from financial products segment 13,149 75,800 30,653 111,985

Net interest expense from financial products segment 248,441 180,983 490,124 336,643

Other operating expenses 38,760 19,967 69,022 51,271
TOTAL EXPENSES 334,667 305,818 656,041 555,210
INCOME BEFORE INCOME TAXES AND MINORITY

INTEREST 75,622 131,525 189,077 277,989
Provision (benefit) for income taxes:

Current 30,489 14,130 47,368 25,909

Deferred (17,694) 22,156 (6,314) 64,161

Total provision 12,795 36,286 41,054 90,070

NET INCOME BEFORE MINORITY INTEREST 62,827 95,239 148,023 187,919

Less: Minority interest = (14,481) = (52,006)
NET INCOME 62,827 109,720 148,023 239,925

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (LOSS), NET OF TAX
Unrealized gains (losses) arising during the period, net of deferred

income tax provision (benefit) of $(51,990), $(25,312), $(64,329)

and $(59,598) (96,554)  (46,400)  (119,468)  (110,579)
Less: reclassification adjustment for gains (losses) included in net

income, net of deferred income tax provision (benefit) of $1,739,

$(1,175), $2,067 and $(1,487) 3,228 (2,182) 3,838 (2,761)
Other comprehensive income (loss) (99,782) (44,218)  (123,306)  (107,818)
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (LOSS) $(36,955) $ 65,502 § 24,717 $ 132,107

The accompanying Notes are an integral part of the Consolidated Financial Statements (unaudited).

FINANCIAL SECURITY ASSURANCE HOLDINGS LTD. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY (unaudited)

(in thousands)

Additional Accumulated

Paid-In Other Deferred Total
Common Capital- Comprehensive Accumulated Equity Treasury Shareholders’
Stock Common Income Earnings Compensation Stock Equity
BALANCE,
December 31, 2006 $335 $ 906,687 $ 160,038 $ 1,655,252 $ 19,225 $(19,225) $2,722,312
Net income for the period 148,023 148,023
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Other comprehensive
income (net of
deferred income tax

provision (benefit) of

(366,396)) (123,306) (123,306)
Dividends paid on

common stock (61,002) (61,002)
BALANCE, June 30,

2007 $335 $906,687 $ 36,732 $1,742,273 $19,225 $(19,225) $2,686,027

The accompanying Notes are an integral part of the Consolidated Financial Statements (unaudited).

FINANCIAL SECURITY ASSURANCE HOLDINGS LTD. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS (unaudited)

(in thousands)

Six Months Ended
June 30,
2007 2006
Cash flows from operating activities:

Premiums received, net $ 176,927 $ 230,394
Policy acquisition costs and other operating expenses paid, net (162,077) (152,042)
Salvage and subrogation 247 400
Losses and loss adjustment expenses paid, net (1,222) (1,373)
Net investment income received in general investment portfolio 116,840 101,030
Federal income taxes paid (56,182) (42,961)
Interest paid on notes payable (24,298) (13,425)
Interest paid on financial products segment (331,229) (222,552)
Interest received on financial products segment 465,024 335,979
Financial products segment net derivative payments (34,245) (45,196)
Purchases of trading portfolio securities in financial products segment (223,805) -
Income received from refinanced assets 10,347 13,810
Other 7,926 9,495

Net cash provided by (used for) operating activities (55,747) 213,559

Cash flows from investing activities:

Proceeds from sales of bonds in general investment portfolio 1,853,882 685,646
Proceeds from maturities of bonds in general investment portfolio 106,347 83,630
Purchases of bonds in general investment portfolio (1,968,903) (950,075)
Net (increase) decrease in short-term investments in general investment

portfolio (29,611) 74,284
Proceeds from sales of bonds in financial products segment 2,476,562 1,440,000
Proceeds from maturities of bonds in financial products segment 2,129,238 1,516,891
Purchases of bonds in financial products segment (5,504,911) (4,531,716)
Securities purchased under agreements to resell 150,000 225,000
Net (increase) decrease in short-term investments in financial products

segment (190,371) 405,150
Paydowns of assets acquired in refinancing transactions 58,838 42,986
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Proceeds from sales of assets acquired in refinancing transactions 1,854 5,530

Purchases of property, plant and equipment (489) (2,178)
Other investments 14,297 36,860
Net cash provided by (used for) investing activities (903,267) (967,992)
Cash flows from financing activities:
Dividends paid (61,002) (65,025)
Proceeds from issuance of financial products segment debt 2,615,894 2,511,995
Repayment of financial products segment debt (1,578,993)  (1,709,874)
Capital issuance costs (430) (478)
Net cash provided by (used for) financing activities 975,469 736,618
Effect of changes in foreign exchange rates on cash balances 69 1,290
Net increase (decrease) in cash 16,524 (16,525)
Cash at beginning of period 32,471 43,629
Cash at end of period $ 48,995 § 27,104

The accompanying Notes are an integral part of the Consolidated Financial Statements (unaudited).

4

FINANCIAL SECURITY ASSURANCE HOLDINGS LTD. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (unaudited)

1. ORGANIZATION AND OWNERSHIP

Financial Security Assurance Holdings Ltd. (“FSA Holdings” or, together with its consolidated entities, the “Company”) is a holding
company incorporated in the State of New York. The Company operates in two business segments: the Financial Guaranty Segment and the
Financial Products (“FP”’) Segment. The Financial Guaranty Segment is the principal segment, providing financial guaranty insurance on
public finance and asset-backed obligations through the Company’ s primary insurance company subsidiary, Financial Security Assurance Inc.
(“FSA”™), and other domestic and foreign insurance company subsidiaries. The Company’ s underwriting policy is to insure public finance and
asset-backed obligations that it determines would be investment-grade quality without the benefit of the Company’ s insurance. Public finance
obligations insured by the Company consist primarily of general obligation bonds supported by the issuers’ taxing powers and special revenue
bonds and other special obligations of states and local governments supported by the issuers’ abilities to impose and collect fees and charges
for public services or specific projects. Public finance obligations include obligations backed by the cash flow from leases or other revenues
from projects serving substantial public purposes, including government office buildings, toll roads, health care facilities and utilities. Asset-
backed obligations insured by the Company are generally issued in structured transactions and are backed by pools of assets, such as
residential mortgage loans, consumer receivables, securities or other assets having an ascertainable cash flow or market value. The Company
also insures synthetic asset-backed obligations that generally take the form of credit default swap (“CDS”) obligations or credit-linked notes
that reference specific asset-backed securities or pools of securities or loans, with a defined deductible to cover credit risks associated with the

referenced securities or loans.

The Company has refinanced certain defaulted transactions by employing refinancing vehicles to raise funds for the refinancings. These
refinancing vehicles are consolidated. The Company’ s management believes that the assets held by the refinancing vehicles are beyond the
reach of the Company and its creditors, even in bankruptcy or other receivership.

In the FP Segment, the Company issues guaranteed investment contracts (“GICs”) in the municipal GIC and other markets through
several consolidated affiliates (“GIC Affiliates”). The GIC Affiliates lend the proceeds from their sales of GICs to FSA Asset Management
LLC (“FSAM”), a wholly owned subsidiary of FSA Holdings, which invests the funds, generally in obligations that qualify for FSA
insurance. FSAM wholly owns FSA Portfolio Asset Limited, a U.K. Company that invests in non-U.S. securities. The FP Segment also
includes the results of certain variable interest entities (“VIEs™), including FSA Global Funding Limited (“FSA Global”) and Premier
International Funding Co. (“Premier”). FSA Global issues FSA-insured medium term notes and generally invests the proceeds from the sale
of its notes in FSA-insured GICs or other FSA-insured obligations with a view to realizing the yield difference between the notes issued and
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the obligations purchased with the note proceeds. Substantially all the assets of FSA Global are pledged to secure the repayment, on a pro rata
basis, of FSA Global’ s notes and its other obligations. Certain FSA Global debt issuances contain provisions that could extend the stated
maturities of those notes. To ensure FSA Global will have sufficient cash flow to repay its funding requirements, it entered into liquidity
facilities with Dexia for $419.4 million and with other counterparties for $250.0 million. Premier is principally engaged in debt defeasance for
lease transactions. The FP Segment debt is issued at or converted into LIBOR-based floating-rate obligations and the proceeds are invested in
or converted into LIBOR-based floating-rate investments intended to result in profits from a higher investment rate than borrowing rate. The
Company’ s management believes that the assets held by

FINANCIAL SECURITY ASSURANCE HOLDINGS LTD. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (unaudited) (Continued)

1. ORGANIZATION AND OWNERSHIP (Continued)

the consolidated VIEs, including those that are eliminated in consolidation, are beyond the reach of the Company and its creditors, even in

bankruptcy or other receivership.

The Company is a direct subsidiary of Dexia Holdings, Inc. (“DHI”), which in turn is owned 10% by Dexia S.A. (“Dexia’), a publicly
held Belgian corporation, and 90% by Dexia Credit Local S.A., a wholly owned subsidiary of Dexia.

2. BASIS OF PRESENTATION

The accompanying Consolidated Financial Statements have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in
the United States of America (“GAAP”) for interim financial statements and, in the opinion of management, reflect all adjustments necessary
for a fair statement of the financial position, results of operations and cash flows for all periods presented. These Consolidated Financial
Statements should be read in conjunction with the Consolidated Financial Statements and notes thereto included in the Company’ s Annual
Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2006. The accompanying Consolidated Financial Statements have not been audited by
an independent registered public accounting firm in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board
(United States). The December 31, 2006 consolidated balance sheet was derived from audited financial statements. The results of operations
for the periods ended June 30, 2007 and 2006 are not necessarily indicative of the operating results for the full year. Certain prior-year

balances have been reclassified to conform to the 2007 presentation.

Revisions

The statement of cash flows for the period ended June 30, 2007 appropriately segregates the effect of changes in foreign exchange rates
on cash balances into a separate line item. The effect of foreign exchange rates on cash balances has historically been included in cash flows
from operations. The statements of cash flows for the period ended June 30, 2006 has been revised to conform to the 2007 presentation. The
2006 statement of cash flows also reflects the reclassification of certain accounts. The amount of the revision at June 30, 2006 from cash to

short-term investments was $35.7 million.

3. LOSSES AND LOSS ADJUSTMENT EXPENSES

The Company establishes loss liabilities based on its estimate of specific and non-specific losses. The Company also establishes liabilities
for loss adjustment expenses (“LAE”), consisting of the estimated cost of settling claims, including legal and other fees and expenses

associated with administering the claims process.

The Company calculates a loss and LAE liability based upon identified risks inherent in its insured portfolio. If an individual policy risk
has a reasonably estimable and probable loss as of the balance sheet date, a case reserve is established. For the remaining policy risks in the

portfolio, a non-specific reserve is established to account for the inherent credit losses that can be statistically estimated.
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The following table presents the activity in non-specific and case reserves for the six months ended June 30, 2007. Adjustments to
reserves represent management’ s estimate of the amount required to cover the present value of the net cost of claims, based on statistical
provisions for new originations. Transfers

FINANCIAL SECURITY ASSURANCE HOLDINGS LTD. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (unaudited) (Continued)

3. LOSSES AND LOSS ADJUSTMENT EXPENSES (Continued)

between non-specific and case reserves represent a reallocation of existing loss reserves and have no impact on earnings.

Reconciliation of Net Losses and Loss Adjustment Expenses

Non-
Specific Case Total
(in millions)
December 31, 2006 $137.8 $53.0 $190.8
Incurred 9.1 - 9.1
Transfers (1.2) 1.2 =
Payments - (0.8) (0.8)
June 30, 2007 balance $145.7 $534 $199.1

Management of the Company periodically evaluates its estimates for losses and LAE and establishes reserves that management believes
are adequate to cover the present value of the ultimate net cost of claims. However, because of the uncertainty involved in developing these
estimates, the ultimate liability may differ from current estimates.

The gross and net par amounts outstanding on transactions with case reserves were $399.0 million and $323.0 million, respectively, at
June 30, 2007. The net case reserves consisted primarily of five collateralized debt obligation (“CDQO”) risks and two municipal risks, which
collectively accounted for approximately 95.6% of total net case reserves. The remaining eight exposures were in non-municipal sectors.

Management is aware that there are differences regarding the method of defining and measuring both case reserves and non-specific
reserves among participants in the financial guaranty industry. Other financial guarantors may establish case reserves only after a default and
use different techniques to estimate probable loss. Other financial guarantors may establish the equivalent of non-specific reserves, but refer to

LRI

these reserves by various terms, such as, but not limited to, “unallocated losses,” “active credit reserves” and “portfolio reserves,” or may use
different statistical techniques from those used by the Company to determine loss at a given point in time. In April 2007, the Financial
Accounting Standards Board (the “FASB”) published an exposure draft proposing new guidance for financial guaranty insurance accounting.
This exposure draft proposes, among other things, changes to reserving and premium earnings methodologies. If adopted in its current form,

based on management’ s current understanding of this exposure draft, the effect of these changes would be material to the financial statements.
4. FINANCIAL PRODUCTS SEGMENT DEBT

The obligations under GICs issued by the GIC Affiliates may be called at various times prior to maturity based on certain agreed-upon
events. As of June 30, 2007, interest rates were between 1.91% and 6.07% per annum on outstanding GICs and between 1.98% and 6.20% per
annum on VIE debt. Payments due under GICs are based on expected withdrawal dates and exclude negative hedge accounting adjustments
and prepaid interest of $190.8 million and include accretion of $915.0 million. VIE debt
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FINANCIAL SECURITY ASSURANCE HOLDINGS LTD. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (unaudited) (Continued)

4. FINANCIAL PRODUCTS SEGMENT DEBT (Continued)

excludes fair-value adjustments of $131.1 million and includes $1,031.2 million of future interest accretion on zero-coupon obligations. The
following table presents the combined principal amounts due under GIC

and VIE debt for the remainder of 2007, each of the next four calendar years ending December 31, and thereafter:

Principal

Amount
(in millions)
2007 $ 2,391.7
2008 1,980.1
2009 2,619.7
2010 2,730.6
2011 1,373.9
Thereafter 10,294.6
Total $21,390.6

5. OUTSTANDING EXPOSURE

The Company’ s policies insure the scheduled payments of principal and interest on public finance and asset-backed obligations
(including FSA-insured derivatives). The gross amount of financial guaranties in force (principal and interest) was $762.9 billion at June 30,
2007 and $743.9 billion at December 31, 2006. The net amount of financial guaranties in force was $553.8 billion at June 30, 2007 and
$531.4 billion at December 31, 2006. The Company limits its exposure to losses from writing financial guaranties by underwriting
investment-grade obligations, satisfying both rating agency and its own credit standards, diversifying its portfolio by product type and
geography and through reinsurance.

The net and ceded par outstanding of insured obligations in the public finance insured portfolio were comprised as set forth below:

Net Par Outstanding Ceded Par Outstanding
June 30, December 31, June 30, December 31,
2007 2006 2007 2006

(in millions)
Domestic obligations

General obligation $109,012 $103,112 $ 29,359 $28,143
Tax-supported 47,508 46,479 18,589 18,733
Municipal utility revenue 42,066 40,495 13,898 13,367
Health care revenue 13,498 13,155 10,853 10,144
Housing revenue 7,508 7,576 1,942 2,039
Transportation revenue 16,509 16,164 10,506 10,337
Education 4,850 4,378 1,627 1,027
Other domestic public finance 1,818 1,628 645 509
International obligations 20,001 18,306 16,244 14,554
Total public finance obligations $262,770 $251,293 $103,663 $98,853
8

Copyright © 2012 www.secdatabase.com. All Rights Reserved.
Please Consider the Environment Before Printing This Document


http://www.secdatabase.com

FINANCIAL SECURITY ASSURANCE HOLDINGS LTD. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (unaudited) (Continued)

5. OUTSTANDING EXPOSURE (Continued)

The net and ceded par outstanding of insured obligations in the asset-backed insured portfolio (including FSA-insured derivatives)
included the following amounts:

Net Par Outstanding Ceded Par Outstanding
June 30, December 31, June 30, December 31,
2007 2006 2007 2006

(in millions)
Domestic obligations

Residential mortgages $ 18,135 $ 15,666 $§ 2,899 $ 2,555
Consumer receivables 11,640 10,599 560 664
Pooled corporate obligations 52,036 45,914 7,338 8,729
Other domestic asset-backed obligations(1) 6,826 6,793 3,239 2,952
International obligations 29,889 29,295 6,336 8,077
Total asset-backed obligations $118,526 $108,267 $ 20,372 $22,977

(1) Excludes net par outstanding of $17,914 million as of June 30, 2007 and $16,558 million as of December 31, 2006 relating to FSA-
insured GICs issued by the GIC Affiliates and other intercompany insurance.

6. TAXES

The Company adopted FASB Interpretation No. 48, “Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes—an Interpretation of SFAS Statement
No.109” (“FIN 487) as of January 1, 2007. FIN 48 clarifies the accounting for uncertainty in income taxes in an entity’ s financial statements
pursuant to FASB Statement No. 109, “Accounting for Income Taxes” and provides thresholds for recognizing and measuring benefits of a
tax position taken or expected to be taken in a tax return. Consequently, the Company recognizes tax benefits only on tax positions where it is
“more likely than not” to prevail. There was no effect on the Company’ s statement of operations and comprehensive income from adopting
FIN 48.

The total amount of unrecognized tax benefits at January 1, 2007 and June 30, 2007 were $22.8 million and $27.1 million, respectively.
If recognized, the entire amount would favorably affect the effective tax rate. Further, the Company recognizes interest and penalties related to
unrecognized tax benefits as part of income taxes. For the period ended June 30, 2007, the Company accrued $0.7 million of expenses related

to interest and penalties. Cumulative interest and penalties of $2.6 million had been accrued on the Company’ s balance sheet at June 30, 2007.

The Company files consolidated income tax returns in the United States as well as separate tax returns for certain of its subsidiaries or
branches in various state and local and foreign jurisdictions, including the United Kingdom, Japan, Australia, and Singapore. With limited
exceptions, the Company is no longer subject to income tax examinations for its 2002 and prior tax years for U.S. federal, state and local, or

non-U.S. jurisdictions.

Within the next 12 months, it is reasonably possible that unrecognized tax benefits for tax positions taken on previously filed tax returns
will become recognized as a result of the expiration of the statute of limitations for the 2003 tax year, which, absent any extension, will close
in September 2007.
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FINANCIAL SECURITY ASSURANCE HOLDINGS LTD. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (unaudited) (Continued)

7. DERIVATIVE INSTRUMENTS
Insured Derivatives

Included in the Company’ s insured portfolio are certain contracts that qualify as derivatives under Statement of Financial Accounting
Standards (“SFAS™) No. 133, “Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities” (“SFAS 133”") or SFAS No. 155, “Accounting
for Certain Hybrid Financial Instruments” (“SFAS 155”). Changes in the fair-value of these contracts are recorded through the statements of
operations and comprehensive income. These contracts include FSA-insured CDS, insured interest rate swaps entered into in connection with
the issuance of certain public finance obligations and insured net interest margin (“NIM™) securitizations issued in connection with certain
mortgage-backed security (“MBS”) financings. The Company considers all such agreements to be a normal extension of its financial guaranty
insurance business. For accounting purposes, these types of contracts may be deemed derivatives (insured CDS and interest rate swaps) or
may be deemed to include embedded derivatives (insured NIM securitizations). For insured NIM securitizations the Company currently treats
the entire instrument as a derivative and therefore fair values the entire financial guaranty contract.

With respect to insured derivatives, FSA expects that these transactions will not be subject to a market value termination for which the
Company would be liable. The Company recorded net earned premium under these agreements of $23.2 million and $45.4 million for the
three and six months ended June 30, 2007, respectively, and $23.2 million and $45.7 million for the three and six months ended June 30, 2006,
respectively.

The Company’ s net par outstanding of $77.4 billion and $74.7 billion relating to insured CDS and NIM securitizations at June 30, 2007
and December 31, 20006, respectively, are included in the asset-backed balances in Note 5. The Company believes that the most meaningful
presentation of the financial statement impact of these derivatives is to record earned premiums over the installment period and to record
changes in fair value as incurred. Changes in fair value are recorded in net realized and unrealized gains (losses) on derivative instruments and
in either other assets or other liabilities, as appropriate. The Company uses quoted market prices, when available, to determine fair value. If
quoted market prices are not available, as is generally the case, the Company uses internally developed estimates of fair value. Management
applies judgment when developing these estimates and considers factors such as current prices charged for similar agreements, performance of
underlying assets, changes in internal shadow ratings, the level at which the deductible has been set and the Company’ s ability to obtain
reinsurance for its insured obligations. Due to the lack of a quoted market for the CDS obligations written by the Company, estimates
generated from the Company’ s valuation process may differ materially from values that may be realized in market transactions. Management
does not believe that the fair value adjustments are an indication of potential claims under FSA’ s guarantees or an indication of potential gains
or losses to be realized from the derivative transactions. The average remaining life of these contracts as of June 30, 2007 was 3.5 years. The
inception-to-date gain for all insured derivatives is recorded in other assets (See Note 8).
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FINANCIAL SECURITY ASSURANCE HOLDINGS LTD. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (unaudited) (Continued)

7. DERIVATIVE INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

The table below shows the changes in fair value of insured derivatives that are recorded in net realized and unrealized gains (losses) on

derivative instruments in the consolidated statements of operations and comprehensive income:

Three Months Six Months
Ended Ended
June 30, June 30,
2007 2006 2007 2006

(in millions)
Insured derivatives:
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CDS $(454) $(3.1) $(57.1) $25.9

Insured interest rate swaps 0.0 (0.1) (0.3) 0.1
NIM securitizations(1) (0.2) - (1.4) -
Total $(45.6) $(3.2) $(588) $26.0

(1) As of January 1, 2007, the Company implemented SFAS 155, which resulted in a mark-to-market loss of $0.2 million and $1.4 million
related to insured NIM securitizations for the three and six months ended June 30, 2007, respectively. The change in fair value was a
function of the market’ s adverse perception of mortgage-backed products. The Company does not believe that the fair value adjustments
are an indication of potential claims under FSA’ s guarantees or an indication of potential gains or losses to be realized from the
derivative transactions.

Interest Rate and Foreign Exchange Rate Derivatives

The Company enters into derivative contracts to manage interest rate and foreign currency exposure in its FP Segment investment
portfolio and FP Segment debt. All gains and losses from changes in the fair value of derivatives are recognized immediately in the
consolidated statements of operations and comprehensive income. These derivatives generally include interest rate and currency swap
agreements, which are primarily utilized to convert fixed-rate debt and investments into U.S. dollar floating-rate debt and investments. Hedge

accounting is applied to fair-value hedges provided certain criteria are met.

In order for a derivative to qualify for hedge accounting, it must be highly effective at reducing the risk associated with the exposure
being hedged. An effective hedge is defined as one whose periodic fair value change is 80% to 125% correlated with the fair value of the
hedged item. The difference between a perfect hedge (i.e., one that is 100% correlated) and the actual correlation within the 80% to 125%
effectiveness range is the ineffective portion of the hedge. A failed hedge is one whose correlation falls outside of the 80% to 125%
effectiveness range. The table below presents the net gain (loss) related to the ineffective portion of the Company’ s fair value hedges and net
gain (loss) related to failed hedges.

Three Months Six Months
Ended Ended
June 30, June 30,

2007 2006 2007 2006

(in millions)
Ineffective portion of fair value hedges(1) $19 §$50 $ 28 $89
Change in fair value of failed hedges 0.1 1.2 (03) 1.5

(1) Includes the changes in value of hedging instruments related to the passage of time, which have been excluded from the assessment of
hedge effectiveness.
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FINANCIAL SECURITY ASSURANCE HOLDINGS LTD. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (unaudited) (Continued)

7. DERIVATIVE INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

The inception-to-date net unrealized gain on derivatives in the FP Segment of $360.3 million and $487.3 million at June 30, 2007 and
December 31, 2006, respectively, is recorded in other assets or accrued expenses, other liabilities and minority interest, as applicable.

Other Derivatives

The Company enters into various other derivative contracts that do not qualify for hedge accounting treatment under SFAS 133. These
derivatives may include swaptions, caps and other derivatives that are used principally as protection against large interest rate movements in
certain assets and liabilities. Gains and losses on these derivatives are reflected in net realized and unrealized gains (losses) on derivative

instruments in the consolidated statements of operations and comprehensive income.
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8. OTHER ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

The detailed balances that comprise other assets and accrued expenses, other liabilities and minority interest at June 30, 2007 and
December 31, 2006 are as follows:

June 30, December 31,
2007 2006

(in thousands)

Other assets:

Unrealized gain on FP Segment derivatives $ 490,052 § 526,984
Fair-value adjustments on insured derivatives 30,401 89,195
VIE other invested assets - 157,810
Securities purchased under agreements to resell = 150,000
Deferred compensation trust 117,996 114,181
Tax and loss bonds 140,893 127,150
Accrued interest in FP Segment 193,869 168,997
Accrued interest income on general investment portfolio 60,006 60,929
Other assets 210,374 215,513
Total other assets $1,243,591 $1,610,759
June 30, December 31,
2007 2006

(in thousands)
Other liabilities and minority interest:

Payable for securities purchased $ 285,190 $ 33,046
Deferred compensation trust 117,996 114,181
Equity participation plan 77,117 112,688
Accrued interest in FP Segment 206,622 184,177
Unrealized loss on FP Segment derivatives 129,729 39,724
Other liabilities 225,065 307,598
Minority interest in VIE’ s 250 250
Total other liabilities and minority interest $1,041,969 $791,664
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FINANCIAL SECURITY ASSURANCE HOLDINGS LTD. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (unaudited) (Continued)

9. SEGMENT REPORTING

The Company operates in two business segments: financial guaranty and financial products. The Financial Guaranty Segment is
primarily in the business of providing financial guaranty insurance on public finance and asset-backed obligations in exchange for a premium.
The FP Segment includes the GIC operations of the Company, which issues GICs to municipalities and other market participants and invests
the proceeds from the sale of GICs in investments that are floating-rate obligations or converts such obligations into LIBOR-based floating-
rate investments to produce a net interest margin. GICs provide for the return of principal and the payment of interest at pre-specified rates.
Reflecting the manner in which the VIEs’ operations are managed, the results of the VIEs have been included in the FP Segment beginning in
the fourth quarter of 2006. The June 30, 2006 disclosures have been reclassified to conform to the 2007 presentation.

The following tables summarize the financial information by segment as of and for the three and six months ended June 30, 2007 and
2006. The exclusions from pretax operating earnings are the fair value adjustments on insured derivatives and economic interest rate hedges.

Three Months Ended June 30, 2007
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Financial Financial Intersegment
Guaranty Products Eliminations Total

(in thousands)

Revenues:
External $ 138,353 $§ 271936 § - $§ 410,289
Intersegment 837 4,062 (4,899) =
Expenses:
External (66,790) (267,877) = (334,667)
Intersegment (4,062) (837) 4,899 -
Less:

SFAS133 fair-value
adjustments for insured
derivatives and

economic interest rate

hedges (45,587) (11,025) - (56,612)
Pretax segment operating
earnings 113,925 18,309 - 132,234
Segment assets $7,067,109  $20,185,782  $(262,199)  $26,990,692
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (unaudited) (Continued)

9. SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued)

Three Months Ended June 30, 2006
Financial Financial Intersegment
Guaranty Products Eliminations Total

(in thousands)

Revenues:
External $ 161,710 $ 275,633 § - § 437343
Intersegment 930 5,159 (6,089) -
Expenses:
External (53,268) (252,550) = (305,818)
Intersegment (5,159) (930) 6,089 -
Less:

SFAS133 fair-value
adjustments for insured
derivatives and
economic interest rate

hedges (3,136) 16,260 - 13,124
Pretax segment operating

carnings 107,349 11,052 - 118,401

Segment assets $7,054,467 $16,334297  $(377,443) $23,011,321

Six Months Ended June 30, 2007
Financial Financial Intersegment
Guaranty Products Eliminations Total

(in thousands)
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Revenues: $ 293,948 §$ 551,170  $ - § 845,118

External 1,746 8,301 (10,047) -
Intersegment
Expenses:
External (123,467)  (532,574) = (656,041)
Intersegment (8,301) (1,746) 10,047 -
Less:

SFAS133 fair-value adjustments
for insured derivatives and
economic interest rate hedges (58,793) (11,013) - (69,806)
Pretax segment operating earnings $ 222,719 §$§ 36,164 $ - § 258,883
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (unaudited) (Continued)

9. SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued)

Six Months Ended June 30, 2006
Financial Financial Intersegment
Guaranty Products Eliminations Total

(in thousands)

Revenues:
External $ 352884 § 480,315 § - § 833,199
Intersegment 1,824 10,545 (12,369) =
Expenses:
External (105,910) (449,300) = (555,210)
Intersegment (10,545) (1,824) 12,369 -
Less:

SFAS133 fair-value
adjustments for insured
derivatives and

economic interest rate

hedges 26,028 15,179 - 41,207
Pretax segment operating
earnings $ 212225 § 24,557 § - § 236,782

The following tables present reconciliations of the segments’ pre-tax operating earnings to net income.

Three Months Ended June 30, 2007
Financial Financial Intersegment
Guaranty Products Eliminations Total

(in thousands)

Pretax operating earnings $113,925 § 18,309 $ - $132,234
SFAS 133 fair-value adjustments for

insured derivatives and economic

interest rate hedges (45,587) (11,025) - (56,612)
Taxes (12,795)
Net income $ 62,827
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Three Months Ended June 30, 2006
Financial Financial Intersegment
Guaranty Products Eliminations Total

(in thousands)

Pretax operating earnings $107,349 $11,052 $ - $118,401
SFAS 133 fair-value adjustments for

insured derivatives and economic

interest rate hedges (3,1306) 16,260 - 13,124
Taxes (36,286)
Minority interest 14,481
Net income $109,720
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9. SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued)

Six Months Ended June 30, 2007
Financial Financial Intersegment
Guaranty Products Eliminations Total

(in thousands)

Pretax operating earnings $222,719 § 36,164 $ - $258,883
SFAS 133 fair-value adjustments for
insured derivatives and economic

interest rate hedges (58,793)  (11,013) - (69,806)
Taxes (41,054)
Net income $148,023

Six Months Ended June 30, 2006
Financial Financial Intersegment
Guaranty Products Eliminations Total

(in thousands)
Pretax operating earnings $212,225 $24,557 $ - $236,782
SFAS 133 fair-value adjustments for

insured derivatives and economic

interest rate hedges 26,028 15,179 - 41,207
Taxes (90,070)
Minority interest 52,006
Net income $239,925

The intersegment assets consist of intercompany notes issued by consolidated refinancing vehicles and held within the FP Segment

investment portfolio. The intersegment revenues and expenses relate to interest income and interest expense on intercompany notes and

premiums paid by FSA Global on FSA-insured notes.

The amount of SFAS 133 fair-value adjustments for insured derivatives is a reconciling item between pre-tax segment operating earnings

and net income. In addition, management subtracts the impact of economic interest rate hedges when analyzing the segments. Marking the

derivatives to fair value but not marking the hedged assets or liabilities causes one-sided accounting. By removing its effect, in the view of

management, the measure more closely reflects the underlying economic performance of segment operations.
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10. VARIABLE INTEREST ENTITIES

On April 28, 2006, the Company increased its ownership of the ordinary shares of FSA Global from 29% to 49% through an acquisition
of shares from an unaffiliated third party. Immediately thereafter, FSA Global’ s charter documents were amended to create a new class of
nonvoting preference shares, which was issued to the Company. Holders of such preference shares have exclusive rights to any future
dividends and, upon any winding up of FSA Global, all net assets available for distribution to shareholders (after a distribution of $250,000 to
the ordinary shares). As a result of the issuance of such preference shares, (a) a substantive sale and purchase of an interest took place between
the ordinary shareholders of FSA Global and the Company, resulting in an assessment and recording of the fair value of the assets and
liabilities sold and purchased at the time of such transaction, and (b) the Company’ s minority interest liability
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10. VARIABLE INTEREST ENTITIES (Continued)

associated with FSA Global being eliminated. In the second quarter of 2006, the Company realized a pre-tax gain of $1.8 million as a result of
this transaction. Net income for the second quarter of 2007 includes a $7.4 million after-tax gain representing the correction of a previously
unreported amortization of fair-value adjustments related to the debt of FSA Global. The correction is reflected in the captions net interest

expense from FP Segment and provisions for income taxes.

11. RECENTLY ISSUED ACCOUNTING STANDARDS
On September 15, 2006, the FASB issued SFAS No. 157, “Fair Value Measurements” (“SFAS 157""), which addresses how companies

should measure fair value when required to use fair value measures for recognition or disclosure purposes under GAAP. SFAS 157 adopted an
“exit price” approach to determining fair value and set forth a three-level fair value hierarchy to prioritize the inputs used in valuation
techniques. Level 1 is the highest priority and is defined as observable inputs that reflect quoted prices (unadjusted) for identical assets or
liabilities in active markets. Level 2 is defined as inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable for the asset or
liability through corroboration with observable market data. Level 3 is the lowest priority and is defined as a valuation based on unobservable
inputs such as a company’ s own data. Prioritization of inputs, as well as other considerations, determine the level of disclosure required.
SFAS 157 is applicable to financial statements issued for fiscal years beginning after November 15, 2007 and for interim periods within those

fiscal years. The Company is in the process of evaluating the impact of SFAS 157 on its financial statements.

In February 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. 159, “The Fair Value Option for Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities”
(“SFAS 159), which permits reporting entities to choose to measure at fair value many financial instruments and certain other items that are
not currently required to be measured at fair value. The fair value option may be applied instrument by instrument, is applied only to entire
instruments and not to portions of instruments and the election is irrevocable. SFAS 159 is effective for fiscal years beginning after

November 15, 2007. The Company is currently evaluating SFAS 159 and the implications for the Company’ s financial statements.

In April 2007, the FASB issued FSP No. FIN 39-1, “Amendment of FASB Interpretation No. 39” (“FSP 39-1"). FSP 39-1 amends

FIN No. 39, “Offsetting of Amounts Related to Certain Contracts” (“FIN 39), to permit a reporting entity to offset fair value amounts
recognized for the right to reclaim cash collateral (a receivable) or the obligation to return cash collateral (a payable) against fair value
amounts recognized for derivative instruments executed with the same counterparty under the same master netting arrangement that have been
offset in accordance with FIN 39. FSP 39-1 also amends FIN 39 for certain terminology modifications. FSP 39-1 is effective for fiscal years
beginning after November 15, 2007, with early application permitted, and is applied retrospectively as a change in accounting principle for all
financial statements presented. Upon adoption of FSP 39-1, the Company is permitted to change its accounting policy to offset or not offset
fair value amounts recognized for derivative instruments under master netting arrangements. The Company is currently evaluating FSP 39-1

and has not yet determined the effect the adoption of FSP 39-1 will have on the consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (unaudited) (Continued)

12. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

In the ordinary course of business, the Company and certain Subsidiaries are parties to litigation. The Company is not a party to any

material pending litigation.

On November 15, 2006, the Company received a subpoena from the Antitrust Division of the U.S. Department of Justice (“DOJ") issued
in connection with an ongoing criminal investigation of bid rigging of awards of municipal GICs. On November 16, 2006, FSA received a
subpoena from the Securities and Exchange Commission (“SEC”) related to an ongoing industry-wide civil investigation of brokers of
municipal GICs. The Company issues municipal GICs through the FP Segment, but does not serve as a GIC broker. The subpoenas request
that the Company furnish to the DOJ and SEC records and other information with respect to the Company’ s municipal GIC business. The
Company is cooperating with the investigations by the DOJ and SEC.
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Item 2. Management’ s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations.
Overview

Management’ s principal business objective is to grow the intrinsic value of the Company over the long term. To this end, it seeks to
accumulate an insured portfolio of conservatively underwritten public finance and asset-backed obligations and attractively priced GICs in
order to produce a reliable, predictable earnings stream. Strategically, the Company seeks to maintain balanced capabilities across domestic
and international public finance and asset-backed markets in order to allow the flexibility to pursue the most attractive opportunities available
at any point in the business cycle.

To reflect accurately how management evaluates the Company’ s operations and progress toward long-term goals, this discussion
employs both measures promulgated in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America (“GAAP
measures”) and measures not so promulgated (“non-GAAP measures”). Although the measures identified as non-GAAP in this discussion
should not be considered substitutes for GAAP measures, management considers them key performance indicators and employs them in
determining compensation. Non-GAAP measures therefore provide investors with important information about the way management analyzes

its business and rewards performance.
Unless otherwise noted, percentage changes in this discussion and analysis compare the period named with the comparable period of the
prior year.

For the second quarter of 2007, net income decreased 42.7% from $109.7 million to $62.8 million. For the first half, net income
decreased 38.3% to $148.0 million. The decrease was primarily driven by changes in fair value adjustments for economic interest rate hedges
and investment-grade insured derivatives. Gross premiums written for the second quarter decreased 28.5% to $172.7 million. Shareholders’
equity decreased 1.3% to $2.7 billion from December 31, 2006. The Company paid dividends of $61.0 million in 2007.

Results of Operations

Premiums
Net Earned and Written Premiums
Three Months Six Months
Ended Ended
June 30, June 30,
2007 2006 2007 2006
(in millions)

Net premiums written $111.7 $151.0 $211.9 §$239.7
Net premiums earned 106.0 98.5 205.0 193.0
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Net premiums earned excluding effect of refundings and accelerations 91.4 84.3 175.4 169.7

For the second quarter, gross premiums written decreased 28.5%, and net premiums written decreased 26.0%. For the first six months,
gross premiums written decreased 12.4%, and net premiums written decreased 11.6%. In each case, the change reflected a decrease in public

finance premiums written, partially offset by an increase in asset-backed premiums written.

Second-quarter net premiums earned totaled $106.0 million, a 7.7% increase. This includes $14.6 million of net premiums earned from
refundings and accelerations, compared with $14.2 million for the second quarter of 2006. Excluding premiums from refundings and
accelerations, second-quarter net premiums earned increased 8.5%, primarily reflecting increases in both public finance and asset-backed

earned premiums. The asset-backed earned premiums increase was driven primarily by premium supplements.

For the first six months, net premiums earned totaled $205.0 million, a 6.3% increase. This includes $29.6 million of net premiums
earned from refundings and accelerations, compared with $23.3 million for
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last year’ s comparable period. Excluding premiums from refundings and accelerations, first-half net premiums earned increased 3.4%,

primarily reflecting increases in both public finance and asset-backed earned premiums.

New Business Production

For each accounting period, the Company estimates the present value of originations (“PV originations’). This non-GAAP measure
consists of the total present value of premiums originated (“PV premiums originated”) by FSA and its subsidiaries and the present value of net
interest margin originated (“PV NIM originated”) by the FP Segment. The Company generated PV originations of $217.9 million and $415.4
million in the three and six months ended June 30, 2007 and $298.5 million and $425.0 million in the three and six months ended June 30,
2006, respectively. Management believes that by disclosing the components of PV originations in addition to premiums written the Company

provides investors with a more comprehensive description of its new business activity in a given period.

Present Value of Premiums Originated

The GAAP measure “‘gross premiums written” captures premiums collected and accrued in the period, whether collected for business
originated in the period, or in installments for business originated in prior periods. It is not a precise measure of current period originations
because a significant portion of the Company’ s premiums are collected in installments. Therefore, to measure current period premium
production, management calculates the gross present value of premium installments with respect to business originated in the accounting
period and combines it with premiums received upfront with respect to business originated in the accounting period, which produces the non-
GAAP measure “PV premiums originated.”

The Company’ s insurance policies, including insured derivatives, are generally non-cancelable and remain outstanding for years from
date of inception, in some cases 30 years or longer. Accordingly, PV premiums originated, as distinct from earned premiums, represents

premiums to be earned in the future.

Viewed at a policy level, installment premiums are generally calculated as a fixed premium rate multiplied by the estimated or expected
insured debt outstanding as of dates established by the terms of the policy. Because the actual installment premiums received could vary from
the amount estimated at the time of origination based on variances in the actual versus estimated outstanding debt balances and foreign
exchange rate fluctuations, the realization of PV premiums originated could be greater or less than the amount reported.

Installment premiums are not recorded in the financial statements until due, which is a function of the terms of each insurance policy.
Future installment premiums are not captured in premiums earned or premiums written, the most comparable GAAP measures. Management

therefore uses PV premiums originated to measure current business production.

PV premiums originated is a measure of gross origination activity, and does not reflect premiums ceded to reinsurers or the cost of
insured derivatives or other credit protection, which may be considerable, employed by the Company to manage its credit exposures. PV
premiums originated reflects estimated future installment premiums discounted to their present value, as well as upfront premiums, with
respect to business originated during the period. To calculate PV premiums originated, management discounts an estimate of all future
installment premium receipts. The Company calculates the discount rate for PV premiums originated as the average pre-tax yield on its
insurance investment portfolio for the previous three years. This rate serves as a proxy for the return that could be achieved if the premiums
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had been received upfront. The estimated installment premium receipts are determined based on each installment policy’ s projected par

balance outstanding multiplied by its premium rate. The Company’ s Transaction Oversight Groups estimate the relevant schedule of future

par balances outstanding for each insurance policy with installment premiums. At the time of origination, projected debt schedules are

generally based on good faith estimates developed and used by the parties negotiating the transaction.
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Year-to-year comparisons of PV premiums originated are affected by the application of a different discount rate applied to each vintage

year. The discount rate employed by the Company for this purpose was 4.86% for 2007 originations and 5.07% for 2006 originations.

Management intends to revise the discount rate in future years according to the same methodology, in order to reflect specific return results

realized by the Company.

Reconciliation of Gross Premiums Written to Non-GAAP PV Premiums Originated

Three Months Six Months
Ended Ended
June 30, June 30,
2007 2006 2007 2006
(in millions)
Gross premiums written $172.7 $241.6 $ 322.1 §$ 367.7
Gross installment premiums received (66.0) (61.2) (127.9) (116.5)
Gross upfront premiums originated 106.7 180.4 194.2 251.2
Gross PV estimated installment premiums originated 88.5 79.8 171.7 120.5
Gross PV premiums originated $1952 $260.2 $ 3659 § 371.7

Financial Guaranty Insurance Originations

The tables below show the gross par amount insured and PV premiums originated in the Company’ s major business sectors for the
periods indicated.

Public Finance Originations

Three Months Six Months
Ended Ended
June 30, June 30,
2007 2006 2007 2006

United States:

Gross par insured (in billions) $120 $ 129 $ 263 §$ 202
Gross PV premiums originated (in millions) 77.4 112.3 151.4 166.6
International:

Gross par insured (in billions) 1.7 2.9 2.6 4.5
Gross PV premiums originated (in millions) 39.0 110.2 55.7 138.4

First-half estimated U.S. municipal market volume of $230.3 billion was 28% higher than in the first half of 2006, largely due to
refundings. However, the pace of refundings slowed late in the second quarter due to a rise in interest rates. Insurance penetration during the
first six months was approximately 48%, compared with 50% in last year’ s comparable period. FSA insured approximately 22% of the par
amount of insured new municipal bond issues sold year-to-date.

Including both primary and secondary U.S. public finance obligations with closing dates in the second quarter, the par amount insured by
FSA declined 6.5%, and PV premiums originated declined 31.1%. The decline in PV premium production was related primarily to decreases
in health care and other high-premium types of transactions. For the first half, public finance par insured increased 30.1%, while PV premiums
originated declined 9.1% due to the focus on higher-quality core sectors.

In the primary and secondary international public finance markets, during the second quarter, FSA insured U.K. and Australian utility
financings, an Italian health care receivable securitization and transportation and municipal bond issues in Japan. Par originated declined
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42.4% and PV premiums originated declined 64.6%. Results in this sector tend to be irregular because of the timing of large, high-premium
transactions with long development times. For the first six months, international public finance par insured declined 42.5% and PV premiums
originated declined 59.8%.
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Asset-Backed Originations

Three Months Six Months
Ended Ended
June 30, June 30,

2007 2006 2007 2006
United States:
Gross par insured (in billions) $99 § 89 §$ 223 $132
Gross PV premiums originated (in millions) 64.6 27.2 129.0 53.1
International:
Gross par insured (in billions) 2.5 1.3 4.6 4.9
Gross PV premiums originated (in millions) 14.2 10.5 29.8 13.6

FSA increased its second-quarter U.S. asset-backed production by 10.0% in par originated and 136.9% in PV premiums originated. As in
the first quarter, the business was primarily focused on the pooled corporate and residential mortgage sectors, where FSA found opportunities
at attractive pricing levels in a widening spread environment. Additionally, transactions closed in the second quarter had longer average lives,
which will contribute to stability of future earnings. For the first half, FSA increased U.S. asset-backed par insured 68.7% and PV premiums
originated 142.9%.

Outside the United States, FSA’ s asset-backed par insured increased 95.5% and PV premiums originated increased 34.2% for the second
quarter. PV premiums did not increase as much as par insured because, in last year’ s second quarter, FSA guaranteed two high-premium
diversified payment rights transactions. In the second quarter of this year, FSA guaranteed multinational collateralized debt obligations, U.K.
residential mortgage transactions and Japanese and Canadian consumer finance securitizations. For the first half, FSA produced 119.5% more
international asset-backed PV premiums despite a 6.2% decline in par insured. As in the United States, FSA found more attractively priced
pooled corporate opportunities with generally longer average lives.

Financial Products Originations

The FP Segment produces net interest margin (“FP NIM”) rather than insurance premiums. Like installment premiums, the present value
of FP NIM originated in a given period (“PV NIM originated”) is expected to be earned and collected in future periods.

FP Segment debt is issued at or converted into LIBOR-based floating-rate obligations, with proceeds invested in or converted into
LIBOR-based floating-rate investments intended to result in profits from a higher investment rate than borrowing rate. FP NIM represents the
difference between the current period investment revenue and borrowing cost, net of the economic effect of derivatives used to hedge interest

rate and currency risk.

PV NIM originated represents the difference between the present value of estimated interest to be received on actual investments and the
present value of estimated interest to be paid on liabilities issued by the FP Segment, net of transaction expenses and the expected results of
derivatives used to hedge interest rate risk. In the first quarter of 2007, based on experience, management reduced its estimate of the adverse
effect of transaction and hedging costs. The Company’ s future positive interest rate spread estimate generally relates to contracts or security
instruments that extend for multiple years.

Net interest income and net interest expense are reflected in the consolidated statements of operations and comprehensive income but are
limited to current period earnings. As the GICs and the assets they fund extend beyond the current period, management considers the non-
GAAP measure PV NIM originated to be a useful indicator of future FP NIM to be earned. PV of future NIM is also included in the non-
GAAP measure adjusted book value (“ABV”) as an element of intrinsic value that is not found in GAAP book value.
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GIC Affiliates issue GICs mainly to municipal issuers and for structured transactions. The majority of municipal GICs issued relate to
debt service reserve funds and construction funds in support of municipal bond transactions. The majority of structured GICs serve as
collateral for synthetic CDO transactions. The actual timing and amount of repayments may differ from the original estimates, which in turn
would affect the realization of the estimate of PV NIM originated in a given accounting period.

Financial Products PV NIM Originated

Three Months Six Months
Ended Ended
June 30, June 30,

2007 2006 2007 2006
(in millions)

PV NIM originated $22.7 $383 $495 $533

In the FP Segment, PV NIM originated decreased 40.4% for the second quarter, reflecting shorter average lives of new investments. The
Company continued to invest conservatively in the mortgage-backed sector, focusing on Triple-A tranches, and it was able to further reduce
portfolio risk by investing in shorter term Triple-A mortgage-backed securities, for which spreads had widened. PV NIM declined 6.9% for
the first half.

Operating Earnings and Adjusted Book Value

In addition to evaluating the Company’ s GAAP financial information, management evaluates the Company’ s business under certain
non-GAAP performance measures that management refers to as operating earnings and ABV. Management uses these two metrics to measure
the Company’ s performance and to calculate long-term incentive compensation and the annual bonus pool. Management refers to this
information in its presentations with rating agencies and the Board of Directors. While these metrics are not substitutes for reported results
under GAAP, management regards operating earnings and ABV as meaningful indicators of operational performance that supplement the

information available from GAAP measures.

While GAAP provides a uniform comprehensive basis of accounting, management believes that operating earnings is an important
additional measure for providing a more complete understanding of the Company’ s results of operations. The Company defines operating
earnings as net income before the effects of fair-value adjustments for:

1. Economic interest rate hedges, defined as derivatives intended to hedge fixed rate assets and liabilities that do not meet the criteria

for hedge accounting treatment under SFAS 133, adjusted so that the impact of any hedge ineffectiveness remains in operating
earnings; and

2. Insured investment-grade derivatives, which are certain contracts that qualify as derivatives under SFAS 133 or SFAS 155 and
therefore require changes in fair value to be recorded in the income statement. These contracts include FSA-insured CDS, insured
interest rate swaps in certain public finance obligations and insured net interest margin (“NIM”) securitizations.

Periodic unrealized gains and losses related to economic interest rate hedges arise primarily in the FP Segment. For derivatives that do
not qualify for “hedge accounting treatment,” derivatives are marked to fair value without the corresponding mark to fair value through the
income statement on risks being hedged. Under the Company’ s definition of operating earnings, the economic effect of these hedges is
recognized, which, for interest rate swaps, generally results in any cash paid or received being recognized ratably as an expense or revenue
over the hedged item’ s life. Futures contracts used to hedge interest rate risk include both the embedded current net interest paid or received,
as well as the value of the future net interest cash flow.

Insured derivatives are transactions that are insured by the Company in the normal course of business and, for accounting purposes,
qualify as derivatives under SFAS 133 and SFAS 155. A large majority of
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these derivatives are CDS, which are generally non-cancelable prior to maturity, and which management views as comparable to other insured
risks. CDS transactions insured by the Company generally reference either a specific security otherwise qualifying for FSA insurance or a
pool of corporate or consumer debt securities or bank loans, structured such that the risk insured is investment grade without the benefit of the
credit protection provided by the Company. In a typical CDS transaction, the Company, in exchange for an upfront or periodic premium,
indemnifies the insured party for economic losses (in excess, in some cases, of an agreed-upon deductible) related to debt obligations of
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specified obligors, structured such that the risk insured is investment grade without the benefit of the credit protection provided by the
Company. In the event a CDS were to migrate below investment grade, the fair-value impact would be fully reflected in operating earnings.
Given the high credit quality of the CDS insured by FSA, management believes it is probable that the financial impact of the fair-value
adjustments for the insured CDS will sum to zero over the finite terms of the exposures, which are typically five to ten years at inception.
Notwithstanding this eventual outcome, sharp swings in the estimated fair value of the CDS portfolio may occur from quarter to quarter, due
to the volatility of credit spreads that drive the fair-value estimates.

Operating earnings are subject to general and specific limitations that investors should consider. For example, there is no comprehensive,
authoritative guidance for management reporting. The Company’ s operating earnings is not a defined term within GAAP and may not be
comparable to similarly titled measures reported by other companies. Unlike GAAP, the Company’ s operating earnings presentation does not
represent a comprehensive basis of accounting. Investors, therefore, should not compare the Company’ s performance with that of other
financial guaranty companies based upon operating earnings. Operating earnings results are meant only to supplement GAAP results by
providing additional information regarding the operational and performance indicators management, the Company’ s Board of Directors and
rating agencies follow to assess performance.

Other limitations arise from the specific adjustments that management makes to GAAP results to derive operating earnings results. For
example, management focuses on the long-term economic effectiveness of those instruments relative to the underlying hedged item and
isolates the effects of interest rate volatility and changing credit spreads on the fair value of such instruments during the period. Under GAAP,
the effects of these factors on the fair value of the derivative instruments (but not the underlying hedged item) tend to show more volatility in
the short term. While the Company believes that its presentation reflects the economic substance of its FP Segment, the presentation
understates GAAP earnings volatility.

Operating earnings also do not reflect earnings volatility related to insured derivative fair-value adjustments. A significant percentage of
the Company’ s insured derivative exposures subject to fair-value adjustments are considered Triple-A or Super Triple-A (defined as credit
quality based on loss protection greater than the Triple-A standard), and the Company does not intend to trade these highly rated, highly
structured contracts. Accordingly, management believes it is probable that the financial impact of the fair-value adjustments for the insured
derivatives will sum to zero over the finite terms of the exposures. For this reason, management believes that the market volatility of credit-
spread pricing, the primary driver of the changes in insured derivative fair-value results, should not influence a measure of the Company’ s
operating performance and therefore excludes insured derivative fair-value adjustments from operating earnings.
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For the second quarter of 2007, the Company’ s operating earnings increased 8.6% to $99.6 million. The following table reconciles net
income to non-GAAP operating earnings:

Reconciliation of Net Income to Non-GAAP Operating Earnings

Three Months Six Months
Ended Ended
June 30, June 30,
2007 2006 2007 2006
(in millions)

Net income $ 62.8 $109.7 $148.0 $239.9
Less fair-value adjustments for economic interest rate hedges, net of

taxes(1) (7.2) 20.1 (7.2) 43.7
Less fair value adjustments for investment-grade insured derivatives, net

of taxes (29.6) (2.1) (38.2) 16.9
Operating earnings $996 $ 917 $1934 §$179.3

(1) Economic hedge ineffectiveness remains in operating earnings. See following table for a more detailed presentation of fair-value
adjustments for economic interest rate hedges.

Fair-Value Adjustments for Economic Interest Rate Hedges

Three Months Six Months
Ended Ended
June 30, June 30,
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2007 2006 2007 2006

(in millions)

Fair-value adjustment for economic interest rate hedges $ (11.0) $§ 163 §$ (11.0) $ 152

VIE minority interest - 14.5 - 52.0

Tax effect 3.8 (10.7) 3.8 (23.5)
Total fair-value adjustments for economic interest rate hedges $ (72) $ 201 $§ (72) $ 437

Adjusted Book Value

To calculate ABV, the following adjustments, on an after-tax basis, are made to shareholders’ equity (GAAP “book value”):
addition of unearned premium revenues, net of amounts ceded to reinsurers;

addition of the present value of future installment premiums, net of amounts ceded to reinsurers and estimated premium taxes;
addition of the present value of future FP net interest margin (“PV future NIM”);

subtraction of the deferred costs of acquiring policies;

elimination of fair-value adjustments for investment grade insured derivatives;

elimination of the fair-value adjustments for economic interest rate hedges;

elimination of unrealized gains or losses on investments; and

International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS”) adjustments.

Sl IR G o e

Management considers ABV an operating measure of the Company’ s intrinsic value. Book value includes an estimate of loss for all
insured risks made at the time of contract origination. ABV adds back certain GAAP liabilities and deducts certain GAAP assets (adjustments
1,4, 5, 6 and 7 in the calculation above), and also captures the estimated value of future contractual cash flows related to transactions in force
as of the balance sheet date (adjustments 2 and 3 in the calculation above) because installment payment contracts, whether in the form of
future premiums or future NIM, are generally non-cancelable and represent a claim to future cash flows. Beginning in 2006, ABV also reflects
certain IFRS adjustments in order to better align the interests of employees with the interests of Dexia S.A., the Company’ s principal
shareholder, whose accounts are maintained under IFRS. An investor attempting to evaluate the Company using GAAP measures alone would
not have the benefit of this information. In addition, investors may
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consider the growth of ABV to be a performance measure indicating the degree to which management has succeeded in building a reliable
source of future earnings. Certain of the Company’ s compensation formulas are based, in part, on the ABV growth rate or ABV growth rate
before IFRS adjustments.

Limitations of the ABV metric include that it reflects the accelerated realization of certain assets and liabilities through equity and its
reliance on an estimate of the amount and timing of receipt of installment premiums and future net interest margin. Actual installment
premium receipts could vary from the amount estimated due to differences between actual and estimated insured debt balances outstanding
and foreign exchange rate fluctuations. Actual net interest margin results could vary from the amount estimated based on sales of investments
prior to maturity and variances in the actual timing and amount of repayment associated with flexible-draw GICs that the Company issues.
ABY excludes the fair-value adjustments for investment-grade insured derivatives and the effective portion of fair-value adjustments for
derivatives that hedge interest rate risk but do not qualify for hedge accounting under SFAS 133.

Adjustments 1, 2 and 3 above represent the sum of cumulative years’ reported PV premiums originated and PV NIM originated, less
what has been earned or adjusted due to changes in estimates as described above. PV of future net interest margin is adjusted for
management’ s estimate of transaction and hedging related costs. In the first quarter of 2007, based on recent experience, management reduced
its estimate of the adverse effect of such costs. Such change in estimates resulted in an increase to ABV of approximately $24.0 million at
June 30, 2007. Adjustments 1 and 2 in the calculation of ABV represent unearned premiums that have been collected and the Company’ s best
estimate of the present value of its future premium installments (comprising current- and prior-period originations that have not yet been
earned). Debt schedules related to installment transactions can change from time to time. Critical assumptions underlying adjustment 2 are

discussed above under “~New Business Production-Financial Guaranty Insurance Originations.”

As discussed above under “~New Business Production—Financial Products Originations,” the Company calculates PV NIM originated
(adjustment 3) because net interest income and net interest expense reflected in the consolidated statements of operations and comprehensive
income are limited to current period earnings. The Company’ s future positive interest rate spread from outstanding FP Segment business can
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be estimated and generally relates to contracts or security instruments that extend for multiple years. Management therefore includes it in
ABYV as another element of intrinsic value not found in GAAP book value.

Adjustment 4 reflects the realization of costs deferred and associated with premium origination.

Through adjustments 5 and 6, the effect of certain items excluded from operating earnings is also excluded from ABV. As explained in
the preceding discussion of operating earnings, management expects the financial impact of the insured derivative fair-value adjustments,
reflected in adjustment 5, to sum to zero over the finite terms of the related exposures. Derivatives reflected in adjustment 6 reduce, on an
economic basis, the interest rate risk of fixed rate assets and liabilities held in the FP Segment, which includes the FSA Global portfolio,
although they do not meet SFAS 133 hedge-accounting requirements. The Company uses such derivatives to hedge against interest rate
volatility, rather than to speculate on the direction of interest rates. The intent of management is to hold the derivatives to expected maturity
along with the related hedged fixed-rate assets or liabilities. In addition, through adjustment 7, ABV excludes the effect of fair-value
adjustments made to investments and reflected in other comprehensive income. As the objective is to optimize long-term stable earnings,
management generally seeks to minimize turnover and therefore any unrealized investment gain or loss is subtracted from book value to
exclude it from the ABV metric. In the event that an investment is liquidated prior to its maturity, any related gain or loss is reflected in both
earnings and ABV without further adjustment. Adjustment 8 reflects IFRS accounting treatment of items for which GAAP and IFRS
treatments differ. These accounting differences relate primarily to foreign exchange, contingencies and fair-value adjustments.
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Shareholders’ equity (“book value”) was $2.7 billion and ABV was $4.1 billion at June 30, 2007. During the twelve month period ended
June 30, 2007 after taking dividends into account, ABV (IFRS basis) grew 14.6%. The ABV growth rate would have been 13.9% without a
change in the estimate of transaction and hedging costs that increased PV future NIM by approximately $24.0 million.

The following table reconciles book value to non-GAAP ABV:

Reconciliation of Book Value to Non-GAAP Adjusted Book Value

June 30, December 31,
2007 2006
(in millions)

Shareholders’ equity (U.S. GAAP) $ 2,686.0 $ 2,7223
After-tax adjustments:

Plus net unearned premium revenues 1,075.9 1,071.4

Plus PV future net installment premiums and PV future NIM 701.3 627.2

Less net deferred acquisition costs 2253 2214

Less fair-value adjustments for insured derivatives 19.8 58.0

Less fair-value of economic interest rate hedges 20.8 72.6

Less unrealized gains on investments 72.0 154.9

Adjusted book value before IFRS adjustments 4,125.3 3,914.0

IFRS adjustments 4.7 4.8

Adjusted book value (IFRS basis) $ 4,130.0 $ 39188

Net Investment Income and Realized Gains

Net investment income increased 9.1% for the second quarter of 2007 and 9.0% for the first six months of 2007. The increase primarily
reflects higher invested balances in the Company’ s general investment portfolio. The Company’ s effective tax rate on investment income
(excluding the effects of realized gains and losses, FP Segment and assets acquired in refinancing transactions) for the first half was 12.3%,
versus 13.4% for the comparable prior-year period. The different rates are primarily a function of the decrease in the proportion of taxable
investment income.

The Company has an investment in XL Financial Assurance Ltd (“XLFA”) in the form of preferred shares. XLFA is a financial guaranty
insurance subsidiary of XL Capital Ltd (“XL"). The Company accounts for its investment in XLFA as available-for-sale securities with
changes in fair value reflected in OCI and with dividends declared or paid included in investment income. The fair value of the investment at
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June 30, 2007 was $39.0 million. In March 2006, the XLFA Board of Directors approved a by-law amendment changing the coupon on
XLFA'’ s preferred shares from a participating dividend based on an internal rate of return up to 19% to a fixed dividend of 8.25% per annum,
effective January 1, 2006. Quarterly dividends were declared at this new rate commencing with the first quarter of 2006. Dividend income was
$0.8 million for the three months ended June 30, 2007 and $1.1 million for the three months ended June 30, 2006. Dividend income was

$1.9 million for the six months ended June 30, 2007 and $2.2 million for the six months ended June 30, 2006. In addition, the Company
received a $15.0 million dividend on March 30, 2007, which was recorded as a return of capital and therefore reduced the carrying amount of
the investment.

Other Income

Other income includes income related to the Company’ s deferred compensation plans (the “DCPs”) and supplemental executive
retirement plans (the “SERPs”), which are based on changes in fair value of investments and are perfectly offset by amounts in other
operating expenses. These amounts were income of $7.2 million and expense of $6.2 million for the second quarter of 2007 and 2006,
respectively, and income of $9.4 million and expense of $0.3 million for the first half of 2007 and 2006, respectively. Excluding such
amounts, other income increased 15.4% for the quarter and 35% for the first half, primarily due to realized gains in foreign exchange.
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Losses and Loss Adjustment Expenses

The Company recorded losses and loss adjustment expense (“LAE”) incurred of $4.7 million in the second quarter of 2007, compared
with $7.9 million in the second quarter of 2006. The Company recorded losses and LAE incurred of $9.1 million for the first six months of
2007, compared with $11.2 million for the six months of 2006. The decreases are driven primarily by an increase in higher rated transactions,
which require lower reserves, compared to that of the comparable prior year periods. Adjustments to reserves represent management’ s
estimate of the amount required to cover the present value of the net cost of claims, based on statistical provisions in the case of new

originations.
Reconciliation of Net Losses and Loss Adjustment Expenses
Non-
Specific Case Total
(in millions)

December 31, 2006 $137.8 $53.0 $190.8

Incurred 9.1 - 9.1

Transfers (1.2) 1.2 =

Payments - (0.8) (0.8)

June 30, 2007 balance $145.7 $53.4 $199.1

The gross and net par amounts outstanding on transactions with case reserves were $399.0 million and $323.0 million, respectively, at
June 30, 2007. The net case reserves consisted primarily of five CDO risks and two municipal risks, which collectively accounted for
approximately 95.6% of total net case reserves. The remaining eight case reserve exposures were in non-municipal sectors.

FSA insures residential mortgage-backed securities backed by U.S. subprime mortgage loans. As of June 30, 2007, FSA had $4.2 billion
of net par exposure to the U.S. subprime mortgage loan sector, representing 1.1 % of total insured net par outstanding. This includes
$3.8 billion of exposure to subprime RMBS and $397.3 million of exposure to net interest margin securitizations (NIMs) backed by subprime
RMBS. Over the last several months, there has been considerable stress in the subprime mortgage loan market, particularly related to
mortgage loans originated during 2005 and 2006. While $1.0 billion of the $4.2 billion subprime net par outstanding guaranteed by FSA
includes RMBS and NIMs originated during 2005 and 2006, 100% of the $916 million originated as regular RMBS is rated “AAA”, while the
$95 million originated as NIMs is rated “BBB” or “A”. The NIMs transactions pay from early cash flows and the outstanding NIMs
(weighted by current outstanding net par) had an expected average life of 0.75 years at issuance.

FSA has generally not participated in the ABS CDO market and insures only two ABS CDOs. FSA's total net par exposure to these two
transactions is $372.8 million, with U.S. subprime RMBS comprising 15.4% of the combined assets of those transactions (or 0.01% of FSA’ s
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total net par outstanding). If all of the U.S. subprime RMBS collateral (the majority of which is rated “A” or better) in these transactions
defaulted with 100% losses, more than half of the overcollateralization available in each of these CDOs would remain.

FSA records a non-specific reserve to reflect the credit risks inherent in its portfolio. The non-specific reserve together with case basis
reserves represent the Company’ s estimate of total loss liability. The Company believes that its total loss liability is adequate given the current
information.

Since case and non-specific reserves are based on estimates, there can be no assurance that the ultimate liabilities will not differ from
such estimates. The Company will continue, on an ongoing basis, to monitor these reserves and may periodically adjust such reserves, upward
or downward, based on the Company’ s revised estimated loss, actual loss experience, its mix of business and economic conditions.
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Management is aware that there are differences regarding the method of defining and measuring both case reserves and non-specific
reserves among participants in the financial guaranty industry. Other financial guarantors may establish case reserves only after a default and
use different techniques to estimate probable loss. Other financial guarantors may establish the equivalent of non-specific reserves, but refer to

LRI

these reserves by various terms, such as, but not limited to, “unallocated losses,” “active credit reserves” and “portfolio reserves,” or may use
different statistical techniques from those used by the Company to determine loss at a given point in time. In April 2007, the Financial
Accounting Standards Board (the “FASB”) published an exposure draft proposing new guidance for financial guaranty insurance accounting.
This exposure draft proposes, among other things, changes to reserving and premium earnings methodologies. Based on management’ s

current understanding of this exposure draft, the effect of these changes would be material to the financial statements if adopted.

Interest Expense

Interest expense increased 72% to $11.6 million for the three months ended June 30, 2007 and 72% to $23.2 million for the six months
ended June 30, 2007. The increase was due to the issuance of hybrid debt in the fourth quarter of 2006.

Policy Acquisition Cost and Other Operating Expense

Three Months Six Months
Ended Ended
June 30, June 30,
2007 2006 2007 2006
(in millions)
Other operating expense and amortization of deferred policy acquisition costs $ 568 § 344 § 103.0 § 819
Other operating expense and amortization of deferred policy acquisition costs, excluding DCPs

and SERPs 49.6 40.6 93.6 82.2

Excluding the DCPs and SERPs, other operating expenses and amortization of deferred policy acquisition costs increased by $9.0
million or 22.0% for the second quarter of 2007 from last year’ s second quarter. For the first six months, those expenses increased by $11.4
million or 13.9%. The increases relate primarily to an increase in compensation expenses and a lower deferral rate.

Financial Products Spread Portfolio Net Interest Margin

FP Segment NIM was $25.8 million for the second quarter of 2007 and $50.4 million for the first six months, compared with last year’ s
results of $17.2 million for the second quarter and $36.7 million for the first six months. The increases reflected primarily portfolio growth in
the GIC business and capital gains. FP Segment NIM is a non-GAAP measure defined as the net interest margin from the FP Segment
excluding fair-value adjustments for economic interest rate hedges. FP spread portfolio NIM is comparable to FP operating NIM, which the
Company reported for periods prior to December 31, 2006. Beginning in the fourth quarter of 2006, FP Segment reporting includes the results of
VIEs, which formerly were reported in the financial guaranty segment.

NIM shown in accordance with classifications required under GAAP on the consolidated statements of operations and comprehensive
income (“Total NIM”) is calculated as net interest income from the FP Segment, plus FP net realized gains (losses), less net interest expense
from the FP Segment. Total NIM was income of $23.0 million for the second quarter of 2007 and income $26.5 million for the second quarter
of 2006 and primarily represents fixed rate liabilities (which are swapped to floating rate obligations) funding floating rate assets.
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The table below reconciles Total NIM with FP Segment NIM and FP spread portfolio NIM:

Reconciliation of Total NIM to Non-GAAP FP Spread Portfolio NIM

Three Months Six Months
Ended Ended
June 30, June 30,
2007 2006 2007 2006
(in millions)

Total NIM $ 230 $§ 265 §$ 295 $§ 472
Realized interest income from and ineffectiveness on economic interest rate hedges (1.3) (14.5) 12.6 (21.1)
Intersegment income related to refinanced transactions 4.1 5.2 8.3 10.6
FP Segment NIM 25.8 17.2 50.4 36.7
Less: VIE NIM(1) 1.1 0.8 2.0 1.9

FP spread portfolio NIM $ 247 $ 164 $ 484 $§ 348

(1) VIE NIM represents the impact of consolidation of the VIEs on the Total NIM.

Net realized interest income and expense associated with derivatives in hedging relationships that do not qualify for hedge accounting are
recorded in realized and unrealized gains and losses on derivative instruments and are added back to calculate FP spread portfolio NIM.
Ineffectiveness related to derivatives that do not qualify for hedge accounting is added back to calculate FP spread portfolio NIM.
Ineffectiveness is the difference between the unrealized gains and losses on derivatives and the unrealized gains and losses on hedged items.
Unrealized gains and losses on derivatives that do not qualify for hedge accounting are shown under the caption net realized and unrealized
gains (losses) on derivative instruments. Unrealized gains and losses on risks hedged with derivatives that do not qualify for hedge accounting
are not recorded in income.

Derivatives that qualify for hedge accounting are classified in the consolidated statements of operations and comprehensive income with
the underlying item being hedged.

Intersegment income relates primarily to intercompany notes held in the FP Segment investment portfolio. In connection with the
Company’ s refinancing transactions, FSA obtains funds from FP operations to fund claim payments, creating an interest bearing
intercompany note. This intercompany note is included in the assets of the FP Segment, with the related net interest income added to FP
Segment NIM, but is eliminated from the consolidated Total NIM.

VIE and FP net interest income are combined on the consolidated statements of operations and comprehensive income, as are VIE and
FP net interest expense. VIE NIM pertains to the net interest margin derived from transactions executed by FSA Global and Premier. The VIE
NIM relates to a passively managed portfolio, while the growing GIC portfolio is actively managed. Accordingly, the VIE NIM is shown
separately from the FP spread portfolio NIM.
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Net Realized and Unrealized Gains (Losses) on Derivative Instruments

The components of net realized and unrealized gains (losses) on derivative instruments are shown in the table below:

Three Months Six Months
Ended Ended
June 30, June 30,
2007 2006 2007 2006
(in millions)

FP and VIE interest rate derivatives $ 1.0 $775 $ 322 $106.0
Insured derivatives (45.6) (3.2) (58.8) 26.0
Other 0.1 04 0.4 0.6
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Net realized and unrealized gains (losses) on derivative instruments $(44.5) $747 $(26.2) $132.6

Insured Derivatives

Included in the Company’ s insured portfolio are certain contracts that qualify as derivatives under Statement of Financial Accounting
Standards (“SFAS”) No. 133, “Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities” (“SFAS 133”) or SFAS No. 155, “Accounting
for Certain Hybrid Financial Instruments” (“SFAS 155”). Changes in the fair-value of these contracts are recorded through the statements of
operations and comprehensive income. These contracts include FSA-insured CDS, insured interest rate swaps entered into in connection with
the issuance of certain public finance obligations and insured net interest margin (“NIM”) securitizations issued in connection with certain
mortgage-backed security (“MBS”) financings. The Company considers all such agreements to be a normal extension of its financial guaranty
insurance business. For accounting purposes, these types of contracts may be deemed derivatives (insured CDS and interest rate swaps) or
may be deemed to include embedded derivatives (insured NIM securitizations). For insured NIM securitizations the Company currently treats

the entire instrument as a derivative and therefore fair values the entire financial guaranty contract.

With respect to insured derivatives, FSA expects that these transactions will not be subject to a market value termination for which the
Company would be liable. The Company recorded net earned premium under these agreements of $23.2 million and $45.4 million for the
three and six months ended June 30, 2007, respectively, and $23.2 million and $45.7 million for the three and six months ended June 30, 2006,
respectively.

The Company’ s net par outstanding of $77.4 billion and $74.7 billion relating to insured CDS and NIM securitizations at June 30, 2007
and December 31, 2006, respectively, are included in the asset-backed balances in Note 5 to the Consolidated Financial Statements in Item 1.
The Company believes that the most meaningful presentation of the financial statement impact of these derivatives is to record earned
premiums over the installment period and to record changes in fair value as incurred. Changes in fair value are recorded in net realized and
unrealized gains (losses) on derivative instruments and in either other assets or other liabilities, as appropriate. The Company uses quoted
market prices, when available, to determine fair value. If quoted market prices are not available, as is generally the case, the Company uses
internally developed estimates of fair value. Management applies judgment when developing these estimates and considers factors such as
current prices charged for similar agreements, performance of underlying assets, changes in internal shadow ratings, the level at which the
deductible has been set and the Company’ s ability to obtain reinsurance for its insured obligations. Due to the lack of a quoted market for the
CDS obligations written by the Company, estimates generated from the Company’ s valuation process may differ materially from values that
may be realized in market transactions. Management does not believe that the fair value adjustments are an indication of potential claims
under FSA’ s guarantees or an indication of potential gains or losses to be realized from the derivative transactions. The average

31

remaining life of these contracts as of June 30, 2007 was 3.5 years. The inception-to-date gain on the balance sheet was $30.4 million at
June 30, 2007 and $89.2 million at December 31, 2006 and is recorded in other assets.

The table below shows the changes in fair value of insured derivatives recorded in net realized and unrealized gains (losses) on derivative

instruments in the consolidated statements of operations and comprehensive income:

Three Months Six Months
Ended Ended
June 30, June 30,
2007 2006 2007 2006

(in millions)

Insured derivatives:

CDS $(454) $ (3.1) $(57.1) $259
Interest rate swaps 0.0 (0.1) 0.3) 0.1
NIM securitizations 0.2) - (1.4) -

Total $(45.6) $ (3.2) $(58.8) $26.0

(1) As of January 1, 2007, the Company implemented SFAS 155, which resulted in a mark-to-market loss of $0.2 million and $1.4 million
related to insured NIM securitizations for the three and six months ended June 30, 2007, respectively. The change in fair value was a
function of the market’ s adverse perception of mortgage-backed products. The Company does not believe that the fair value adjustments
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are an indication of potential claims under FSA’ s guarantees or an indication of potential gains or losses to be realized from the
derivative transactions.

Income from Assets Acquired in Refinancing Transactions

Income from assets acquired in refinancing transactions, excluding realized gains and losses, was $5.5 million and $11.3 million for the
three and six month periods ended June 30, 2007 and $6.1 million and $13.1 for the three and six month periods ended June 30, 2006. The
decrease relates primarily to lower investment balances.

Taxes

For the first six months of 2007 and 2006, the Company’ s effective tax rates were 21.7% and 27.3%, respectively. The prior year
effective tax rate was higher that the current year due to higher fair value adjustments in income, which were taxed at 35.0%. The 2007 and
2006 rates differ from the statutory rate of 35% primarily due to tax-exempt interest income. The Company adopted FIN 48 as of January 1,
2007. FIN 48 clarifies the accounting for uncertainty in income taxes in an entity’ s financial statements pursuant to FASB Statement No. 109,
“Accounting for Income Taxes™ and provides thresholds for recognizing and measuring benefits of a tax position taken or expected to be
taken in a tax return. Consequently, the Company recognizes tax benefits only on tax positions where it is “more likely than not” to prevail.
There was no impact on the Company’ s financial statements from adopting FIN 48. See Note 6 to the Consolidated Financial Statements in
Item 1.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

The Company’ s consolidated invested assets and cash at June 30, 2007, net of unsettled security transactions, were $22,636.5 million,
compared with the December 31, 2006 balance of $21,261.4 million. These balances include the fair value adjustments of the Company’ s
various investment portfolios, which had an aggregate pre-tax unrealized gain position of $52.1 million at June 30, 2007 and $243.1 million at
December 31, 2006. These balances exclude assets in the VIE Investment Portfolio and assets acquired
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under refinancing transactions that management believes are beyond the reach of the Company and its creditors.

Cash from operations was a net outflow of $55.7 million for the six month period ended June 30, 2007, compared to an inflow of
$213.6 million for the six month period ended June 30, 2006. The decrease in cash flows from operations was primarily attributable to the
treatment of trading portfolio asset purchases.

At June 30, 2007, Financial Security Assurance Holdings Ltd. (as a separate holding company, “FSA Holdings”) had cash and
investments of $41.9 million available to fund the liquidity needs of its non-insurance operations. Because the majority of the Company’ s
operations are conducted through FSA, the long-term ability of FSA Holdings to service its debt will largely depend on its receipt of dividends
from, payment on surplus notes by, or repurchase of shares by, FSA.

In its financial guaranty business, premiums and investment income are the Company’ s primary sources of funds to pay its operating
expenses, insured losses and taxes. In its FP Segment, the Company relies on net interest income to fund its net interest expense and operating
expenses. Management believes that the Company’ s operations provide sufficient liquidity to pay its obligations. If additional liquidity is
needed or cash flow from operations significantly decreases, the Company can liquidate or utilize its investment portfolio as a source of funds
in addition to its alternative liquidity arrangements, as discussed further below. The Company’ s cash flows from operations are heavily
dependent on market conditions, the competitive environment and the mix of business originated. In addition, payments made in settlement of
the Company’ s obligations in its insured portfolio may, and often do, vary significantly from year to year depending primarily on the
frequency and severity of payment defaults and its decisions regarding whether to exercise its right to accelerate troubled insured transactions
in order to mitigate future losses. In each of the periods reported, the Company has not drawn on alternative sources of liquidity to meet its
obligations.

FSA Holdings paid dividends of $30.5 million and $61.0 million in the three and six month periods ended June 30, 2007 and
$32.5 million and $65.0 million during the comparable periods of 2006.
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FSA’ s ability to pay dividends depends, among other things, upon FSA’ s financial condition, results of operations, cash requirements
and compliance with rating agency requirements for maintaining its Triple-A ratings, and is also subject to restrictions contained in the
insurance laws and related regulations of New York and other states. Under the insurance laws of the State of New York (the “New York
Insurance Law™), FSA may pay dividends out of earned surplus, provided that, together with all dividends declared or distributed by FSA
during the preceding 12 months, the dividends do not exceed the lesser of (a) 10% of policyholders’ surplus as of its last statement filed with
the Superintendent of Insurance of the State of New York (the “New York Superintendent”) or (b) adjusted net investment income during this
period. FSA did not pay any dividends in the first six months of 2007 and paid $80.0 million of dividends in the first six months of 2006. Based
on FSA'’ s statutory statements for June 30, 2007, and considering dividends that can be paid by its subsidiary, the maximum amount normally
available for payment of dividends by FSA without regulatory approval over the 12 months following June 30, 2007 is approximately
$150.4 million.

FSA may repurchase shares of its common stock from FSA Holdings subject to the New York Superintendent’ s approval. The New York
Superintendent has approved the repurchase by FSA of up to $500.0 million of its shares from FSA Holdings through December 31, 2008. In
2006, FSA repurchased $100 million of shares of its common stock from FSA Holdings. In the first quarter of 2007, FSA repurchased
$35 million of shares of its common stock and in the second quarter of 2007, FSA repurchased $50.0 million of shares of its common stock. In
each case, it retired the repurchased shares.

At June 30, 2007, FSA Holdings held $108.9 million of FSA surplus notes. Payments of principal and interest on such notes may be
made only with the approval of the New York Superintendent. FSA paid $2.7 million in the six month period ended June 30, 2007 and $2.7
million in the six month period ended
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June 30, 2006 in surplus note interest, and did not repay any principal. As of June 30, 2007, FSA has not sought or received permission to
make any further principal or interest payments on its surplus notes.

FSA’ s primary uses of funds are to pay operating expenses and to pay dividends to, or pay interest or principal on surplus notes held by,
or repurchase shares held by, its parent. FSA’ s funds are also required to satisfy claims under insurance policies in the event of default by an
issuer of an insured obligation and the unavailability or exhaustion of other payment sources in the transaction, such as the cash flow or
collateral underlying the obligations. FSA seeks to structure asset-backed transactions to address liquidity risks by matching insured payments
with available cash flow or other payment sources. Insurance policies issued by FSA guaranteeing payments under bonds and other securities
provide, in general, that payments of principal, interest and other amounts insured by FSA may not be accelerated by the holder of the
obligation but are paid by FSA in accordance with the obligation’ s original payment schedule or, at FSA’ s option, on an accelerated basis.
Insurance policies issued by FSA guaranteeing payments under CDS may provide for acceleration of amounts due upon the occurrence of
certain credit events subject to single-risk limits specified in the New York insurance law. These policy provisions prohibiting or limiting
acceleration of certain claims are mandatory under Article 69 of the New York Insurance Law and serve to reduce FSA’ s liquidity

requirements.

FSA has a credit arrangement aggregating $150.0 million, provided by commercial banks and intended for general application to
transactions insured by FSA. If FSA is downgraded below Aa3 and AA-, the lenders may terminate the commitment and the commitment
commission becomes due and payable. If FSA is downgraded below Baa3 and BBB-, any outstanding loans become due and payable. At
June 30, 2007, there were no borrowings under this arrangement, which expires on April 21, 2011, if not extended.

FSA has a standby line of credit in the amount of $350.0 million with a group of international banks to provide loans to FSA after it has
incurred, during the term of the facility, cumulative municipal losses (net of any recoveries) in excess of the greater of $350.0 million or the
average annual debt service of the covered portfolio multiplied by 5.00%, which amounted to $1,397.8 million at June 30, 2007. The
obligation to repay loans under this agreement is a limited recourse obligation payable solely from, and collateralized by, a pledge of
recoveries realized on defaulted insured obligations in the covered portfolio, including certain installment premiums and other collateral. This
commitment has a ten-year term expiring on April 30, 2015 and contains an annual renewal provision, commencing April 30, 2008, subject to
approval by the banks. A ratings downgrade of FSA would result in an increase in the commitment fee. No amounts have been utilized under
this commitment as of June 30, 2007.
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In June 2003, $200.0 million of money market committed preferred trust securities (the “CPS Securities™”) were issued by trusts created
for the primary purpose of issuing the CPS Securities, investing the proceeds in high-quality commercial paper and providing FSA with put
options for issuing to the trusts non-cumulative redeemable perpetual preferred stock (the “Preferred Stock™) of FSA. If FSA were to exercise
a put option, the applicable trust would transfer the portion of the proceeds attributable to principal received upon maturity of its assets, net of
expenses, to FSA in exchange for Preferred Stock of FSA. FSA pays a floating put premium to the trusts. The cost of the puts were
$0.2 million and $0.4 million in the three and six month periods ended June 30, 2007 and $0.3 million and $0.5 million in the three and six
month periods ended June 30, 2006, and was recorded as other operating expense in the Company’ s Consolidated Financial Statements. The
trusts are vehicles that provide FSA access to new capital at its sole discretion through the exercise of the put options. The Company does not
consider itself to be the primary beneficiary of the trusts under Financial Accounting Standards Board Interpretation No. 46, “Consolidation of
Variable Interest Entities, an interpretation of ARB No. 51” (revised December 2003) (“FIN 46-R”) because it does not retain the majority of
the residual benefits or expected losses.

FSA-insured GICs subject the Company to risk associated with unexpected withdrawals of principal allowed by the terms of the GICs.
The majority of municipal GICs insured by FSA relate to debt service
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reserve funds and construction funds in support of municipal bond transactions. Debt service reserve fund GICs may be drawn unexpectedly
upon a payment default by the municipal issuer. Construction fund GICs may be drawn unexpectedly when construction of the underlying
municipal project does not proceed as expected. In addition, most FSA-insured GICs allow for withdrawal of GIC funds in the event of a
downgrade of FSA, typically below Aa3 by Moody’ s or AA- by S&P, unless the GIC provider posts collateral or otherwise enhances its
credit. Some FSA-insured GICs also allow for withdrawal of GIC funds in the event of a downgrade of FSA, typically below A3 by Moody’ s
Investors Service, Inc. (“Moody’ s”) or A- by Standard & Poor’ s Ratings Services (“S&P”), with no right of the GIC provider to avoid such
withdrawal by posting collateral or otherwise enhancing its credit. The Company manages this risk through the maintenance of liquid
collateral and bank liquidity facilities.

FSA Asset Management LLC (“FSAM”) has a $100.0 million line of credit with UBS Loan Finance LLC, which expires December 7,
2007, unless extended. This line of credit provides an additional source of liquidity should there be unexpected draws on GICs issued by the
GIC Affiliates. There were no borrowings under this arrangement at June 30, 2007. Borrowings under this agreement are conditioned on FSA
having a Triple-A rating by either Moody’ s or S&P, and on neither Moody’ s nor S&P having issued a rating to FSA below Aal or AA+,
respectively.

Certain FSA Global debt issuances contain provisions that could extend the stated maturities of those notes. To ensure FSA Global will
have sufficient cash flow to repay its funding requirements, it entered into several liquidity facilities with Dexia and other counterparties for
amounts totaling $669.4 million.

Capital Adequacy

S&P, Moody’ s and Fitch Ratings periodically make an assessment of FSA, which may include an assessment of the credits insured by
FSA and of the reinsurers and other providers of capital support to FSA, to confirm that FSA continues to satisfy the rating agencies’ capital
adequacy criteria necessary to maintain FSA’ s Triple-A ratings. Capital adequacy assessments by the rating agencies are generally based on
FSA’ s qualified statutory capital, which is the aggregate of policyholders’ surplus and contingency reserves determined in accordance with
statutory accounting principles.

In the case of S&P, assessments of the credits insured by FSA are reflected in defined “capital charges,” which are reduced by
reinsurance and collateral to the extent “credit” is allowed for such reinsurance and collateral. Credit provided for reinsurance under the S&P
capital adequacy model is generally a function of the S&P rating of the reinsurer and the qualification of the reinsurer as a “monoline” or
“multi-line” company, as well as any collateral provided by the reinsurer. Capital charges on outstanding insured transactions and reinsurer
ratings are subject to change by S&P at any time. The downgrade of a reinsurer by S&P from the Triple-A to the Double-A category results in
a decline in the credit allowed for reinsurance by S&P from 100% or 95% to 70% or 65%, while a downgrade to the Single-A category results
in 50% or 45% credit under present criteria. A downgrade by S&P of FSA’ s reinsurers would reduce the “margin of safety” by which FSA
would survive a theoretical catastrophic depression modeled by S&P. A reduction by S&P in credit for reinsurance used by FSA would also
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be expected ultimately to reduce the Company’ s return on equity to the extent that ceding commissions paid to FSA by such reinsurers were
not increased to compensate for such reduction. FSA employs considerable reinsurance in its business to manage its single-risk exposures on
insured credits. Any material increase in capital charges by S&P on FSA’ s insured portfolio would likewise be expected to have an adverse
effect on FSA’ s margin of safety under the S&P capital adequacy model and, ultimately, the Company’ s return on equity. The Company may
seek to raise additional capital to replenish capital eliminated by any of the rating agencies in their assessment of FSA’ s capital adequacy.

Capital adequacy is one of the financial strength measures under Moody’ s financial guarantor model. The model uses a Monte Carlo
distribution methodology and includes a penalty for risk concentration and
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recognizes a benefit for diversification. Moody’ s assesses capital adequacy by comparing FSA’ s claims-paying resources to a Moody’ s-
derived probability of potential credit losses. Moody’ s loss distribution reflects FSA’ s current distribution of risk by sector, the credit quality
of insured exposures, correlations that exist between transactions, the credit quality of FSA’ s reinsurers and the term to maturity of FSA’ s
insured portfolio. The published results compare levels of theoretical loss in the tail of this distribution to various measures of FSA’ s claims-
paying resources. Like S&P, Moody’ s allows FSA “credit” for reinsurance based upon Moody’ s rating of the reinsurer. Generally, 100%
credit is allowed for Triple-A reinsurance, 80% to 90% credit is allowed for Double-A reinsurance and 40% to 60% credit is allowed for
Single-A reinsurance.

Fitch’ s Matrix model also uses a Monte Carlo distribution methodology, employing correlation factors and concentration factors. Its
primary measure is the “Core Capital Adequacy Ratio,” which is the ratio of claims paying resources adjusted by Fitch to reflect its view of
their availability to the amount that it calculates (to a AAA level of confidence) would be required to pay claims. Fitch’ s Matrix model applies
reinsurance credit on a transaction level based on Fitch’ s ratings of the provider, Fitch’ s correlation factor and the probability of a dispute

over the claims, which probability varies depending on whether or not the reinsurer is a monoline.

Forward-Looking Statements

The Company relies on the safe harbor for forward-looking statements provided by the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995.
This safe harbor requires that the Company specify important factors that could cause actual results to differ materially from those contained
in forward-looking statements made by or on behalf of the Company. Accordingly, forward-looking statements by the Company and its
affiliates are qualified by reference to the following cautionary statements.

In its filings with the Securities and Exchange Commission (“SEC”), reports to shareholders, press releases and other written and oral
communications, the Company from time to time makes forward-looking statements. Such forward-looking statements include, but are not
limited to:

e projections of revenues, income (or loss), earnings (or loss) per share, dividends, market share or other financial forecasts;

o statements of plans, objectives or goals of the Company or its management, including those related to growth in adjusted book value or
return on equity; and

o cxpected losses on, and adequacy of loss reserves for, insured transactions.

LR LR

Words such as “believes,” “anticipates,” “expects,” “intends” and “plans” and similar expressions are intended to identify forward

looking statements but are not the exclusive means of identifying such statements.

The Company cautions that a number of important factors could cause actual results to differ materially from the plans, objectives,

expectations, estimates and intentions expressed in forward-looking statements made by the Company. These factors include:
e changes in capital requirements or other criteria of securities rating agencies applicable to FSA;
e competitive forces, including the conduct of other financial guaranty insurers;
e changes in domestic or foreign laws or regulations applicable to the Company, its competitors or its clients;

e changes in accounting principles or practices that may result in a decline in securitization transactions or effect the Company’ s
reported financial results;
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e an economic downturn or other economic conditions (such as a rising interest rate environment) adversely affecting transactions
insured by FSA or its General Investment Portfolio;

¢ inadequacy of reserves established by the Company for losses and loss adjustment expenses;

o disruptions in cash flow on FSA-insured structured transactions attributable to legal challenges to such structures;
o downgrade or default of one or more of FSA’ s reinsurers;

o market conditions, including the credit quality and market pricing of securities issued,

e capacity limitations that may impair investor appetite for FSA-insured obligations;

o market spreads and pricing on insured CDS exposures, which may result in gain or loss due to mark-to-market accounting
requirements;

e prepayment speeds on FSA-insured asset-backed securities and other factors that may influence the amount of installment premiums
paid to FSA;

e the risks discussed in “Item 1A. Risk Factors” of the Company’ s annual report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2006;
and

e other factors, most of which are beyond the Company’ s control.

The Company cautions that the foregoing list of important factors is not exhaustive. In any event, such forward-looking statements made
by the Company speak only as of the date on which they are made, and the Company does not undertake any obligation to update or revise

such statements as a result of new information, future events or otherwise.

Item 3. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk.

There has been no material change in the Company’ s market risk since December 31, 2006.

Item 4T. Controls and Procedures.
Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

The Company’ s management, with the participation of the Company’ s Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, completed
an evaluation of the effectiveness of the design and operation of the Company’ s disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in
Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e) under the Exchange Act of 1934, as amended) as of June 30, 2007. Based on that evaluation, the Company’ s
management, including the Chief Executive Officer and the Chief Financial Officer, have concluded that as of such date the Company’ s
disclosure controls and procedures were effective to ensure that information required to be disclosed by the Company in reports that it files or
submits under the Exchange Act is recorded, processed, summarized and reported within the time periods specified by the rules and forms of
the SEC and that such information is accumulated and communicated to management, including the Chief Executive Officer and Chief
Financial Officer, as appropriate, in a manner that allows timely decisions regarding required disclosure.
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PART II-OTHER INFORMATION
Item 4. Submission of Matters to a Vote of Security Holders.

On May 16, 2007, the Company’ s sharcholders executed a Written Consent of Shareholders in Lieu of Annual Meeting, under which
they unanimously approved:

e the election of the following persons to serve as members of the Board of Directors of the Company until the later of (1) the next
annual meeting of shareholders or (2) their successors having been duly elected and qualified:

Robert P. Cochran (Chairman)
Axel Miller (Vice Chairman)
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Bruno Deletre
Michele Colin
Robert N. Downey
John W. Everets
Jacques Guerber
Rembert von Lowis
Séan W. McCarthy
James H. Ozanne
Roger K. Taylor
Xavier de Walque
George U. Wyper; and

o the selection of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP as the Company’ s independent registered public accounting firm to audit the
Company’ s accounts for the year 2007.

Item 6. Exhibits.
(a) Exhibits

Exhibit
No. Exhibit
31.1 Certification pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.
31.2 Certification pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

32.1 Certification pursuant to 18 US.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.
322 Certification pursuant to 18 US.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.
99.1 Consolidated Financial Statements of Financial Security Assurance Inc. for the periods ended June 30, 2007 and 2006.
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SIGNATURE

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf
by the undersigned thereunto duly authorized.

FINANCIAL SECURITY ASSURANCE HOLDINGS LTD.
Date: August 14, 2007

By: /s/ LAURA A.BIELING

Name: Laura A. Bieling
Title: Managing Director & Controller
(Chief Accounting Officer)
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Exhibit Index
Exhibit
No. Exhibit
31.1 Certification pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.
31.2 Certification pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.
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32.1 Certification pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

322 Certification pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.
99.1 Consolidated Financial Statements of Financial Security Assurance Inc. for the period ended June 30, 2007 and 2006.
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